
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2. 

 
ON WEDNESDAY 20 MARCH 2019 AT 3.00 PM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
WEDNESDAY 20 MARCH 2019

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of Meeting held on 20th February 2019   

 
3 - 18 

2   March Questions to the South Central Area Manager   
 

19 - 24 

3   Roads & Traffic Matters 
1. Minutes of Traffic Advisory Group held on the 26th February 2019 in 

relation to Traffic Matters in the South Central Area.  
2. Traffic Service Request Status Report at 15th February 2019.  

 

25 - 36 

4   South Central Area Matters 
1. Presentation on Kilmainham Mill. 
2. Naming and Numbering Proposal for a new mixed use development on a 

site at 88-90 Drimnagh Road, Drimnagh, Dn 12. 
3. Area Manager’s Report 

 

37 - 40 

5   Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services 
1. Public Library Events for March 2019 – South Central Area  
2. Sports and Recreation Report for March 2019 – South Central Area  

 

41 - 56 

6   Planning and Economic Development Matters 
1. Proposed grant of a further licence for the use of part of the premises at 

Longmeadows Pitch & Putt Club, Sarsfield Road, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10. 
 

57 - 62 

7   Emergency Motion 
Emergency Motion in the name of Councillor Ruairi McGinley 
(deferred from February Area Committee Meeting) 
That this Area Committee agrees that the pay and display scheme 
scheduled for Herberton Park, Dublin 8 not proceed in light of sustained 
objections by residents of the street in question. 

 

 

8   March 2019 Motions 
 

 
 
 

 



 

DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

20th March 2019 
 
690 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

This Area Committee agrees that an investigation into the infestation of 
rats in our housing complex at Oliver Bond House be immediately 
undertaken, including an inspection of the old community centre and of all 
old rubbish flues to ensure there are no rats nesting in them. 

 
691 Councillor Hazel De Nortúin 

The Area Committee will facilitate a presentation by the Transition Year of 
Mercy Secondary school in Inchicore on their Social Innovation Fund 
Programme.  
 

692 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
This Area Committee expresses deep frustration at the delay in 
developing Cornamona site, Ballyfermot. We call on the Department of 
Housing to release the funding immediately and allow Dublin City Council 
to start building the 61 units without further delay. 

     
693 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

That this Area Committee resolves to invite Dwyer Nolan into the next or a 
special meeting of the South Central Committee, to discuss their plans for 
the development of the former De La Salle Lands at Ballyfermot Road. 
These lands are a substantial part of the fabric of Ballyfermot and when 
re-developed need to take into consideration the existing community of 
Ballyfermot, the potential and concerns of the area. 

  
694 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

That this Area Committee calls on the Area Manager to initiate a Public 
Realm Walking Infrastructure Scheme for Drimnagh. 

 
695 Councillor Pat Dunne 

That this Area Committee notes the continued and persistent dog fouling 
which is polluting our footpaths and green areas throughout the area.  We 
call for a major public domain campaign aimed at tackling the problem. 
This campaign should educate dog owners informing them of the dangers 
caused by dog poo. It should also use all available powers to prosecute 
and fine offending dog owners and also provide bins to properly dispose of 
the bagged poo.   

 
 

9   February Questions and Answers   
 

63 - 76 

 



1 
 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY 20 FEBRUARY 2019 

 
 

 
 
1   Minutes of Meeting held on 17th January 2019 

Order: Agreed.    
 

 

2   February Questions to the South Central Area Manager 
Order: Replies to Questions and the Area Manager’s report circulated. 
 

 

3   Roads & Traffic Matters 
1. Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group held on the 29th January 2019 in  

relation to Traffic Matters in the South Central Area. 
2. Traffic Service Requests Status Report at 15th January 2019. 
3. 2019 Traffic Works Programme for South Central Area. 
      Order:  1. Report noted.    
                   2. Report noted. 
                   3.        Report noted.  

 

 

4   South Central Area Matters 
1. Presentation on a Strategic Housing Development site at the former Dulux                                    

Factory Site, Davitt Road, Dublin 12. DCC SHD Application No.: 
SHD0002/19, ABPSHD Application No.: ABP-303435-19 

2. Presentation on a Strategic Housing Development site bounded by Mill 
Street, Sweeney’s Terrace and Clarence Mangan Road, Dublin 8. DCC 
SHD Application No.: SHD0003/19.  ABP SHD Application No.: ABP-
303436-19.  

3. Report on the 2019 Discretionary Fund. 
4. Community Grants Report for the South Central Area. 
5. Naming & Numbering Proposal for a new development on a site at 17,18 

& 19 Newport Street, Dublin 8. 
6. Naming & Numbering Proposal for a new development of a site at10C     

Ravensdale Park, Dublin 12. 
7. Naming & Numbering Proposal of a site at Donovan’s Lane, Dublin 8. 
8. Proposal to initiate the procedure to extinguish the Public Right of Way 

over a laneway at 2-10 Clonard Road, Dublin 8. 
9. Area Manager’s Report. 

Order:  1.   Presentation given by Emer Uí Fhátharta, Senior 
  Executive Planner. Members made observations on the 

application which will be factored into the submission to 
An Bord Pleanala.  Members to be given sight of 
submission in advance of it being submitted to An Bord 
Pleanala to ensure that their observations are correctly 
recorded. Presentation noted. 

7 - 16 

Page 3



2 
 

                 2.   Presentation given by Naoise McDonnell, Acting Senior 
Executive Planner. Members made observations on the 
application which will be factored into the submission to 
An Bord Pleanala.  Members to be given sight of 
submission in advance of it being submitted to An Bord 
Pleanala to ensure that their observations are correctly 
recorded.  Presentation noted. 

3.   The members agreed to reduce the allocation for  
Walkinstown Park to €12,500 and allocate €5,000 to St. 
Michael’s Family Resourse Centre and €2,500 to Inchicore 
Football Club. Report Agreed. 

             4.   Agreed. Recommend to Council. 
             5.   Noted.  

    6.   Noted. 
    7.   Noted. 
    8.   Agreed.  
    9.   A report was given and was noted by the Members, (see         
          attachment). 

 
5   Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services 

1. Public Library Events for January 2019 – South Central Area  
2. Sports and December Report for January 2019 – South Central Area  
      Order:  1. Report noted.    
                   2. Report noted. 

 

 

6   Planning and Economic Development Matters 
1. Derelict Sites report on the South Central Area. 
2. Proposed Disposal of multiple plots to the rear of properties 1-17, 19, 30-

36, 38-40 and 42 Eugene Street, Dublin 8. 
3. Proposed disposal of the Council’s fee simple interest in two sites at Davitt 

Road, Drimnagh, Dublin 12. 
Order:   1.  Noted. 

                            2.  Agreed. Recommend to Council. 
                            3.  Agreed. Recommend to Council. 

 

 

7   Emergency Motion 
  Standing Orders was suspended to deal with the following Emergency  

Motions: -  
            

Deferred Emergency Motion No. 1 in the name of Councillor Ruairi 
McGinley 
That this Committee agrees that the pay and display scheme scheduled 
for Herberton Park Dublin 8 not proceed in light of sustained objections by 
residents of the street in question. 
Order:  Deferred to the March Area Committee Meeting.  
 
Emergency Motion No. 2 in the names of Councillors Daithi Doolan, 
Pat Dunne and Greg Kelly 
The South Central Area Committee calls on Dublin City Council CEO, 
Owen Keegan, to apologise for his comments reported in the Sunday 
Business Post. These comments were without foundation and only serve 
to undermine the good work being done by Dublin City Council, DRHE and 
homeless groups in Dublin. 
Order: Agreed.  Refer to the Lord Mayor. 
 
 
 

 

Page 4



3 
 

Emergency Motion No. 3 in the name of Councillor Pat Dunne  
This Area Committee notes with alarm a reduction in available staff in the 
three area offices. These reductions are having an impact on the delivery 
of services. We are rightly concerned that the Crumlin Area office may 
once again have to reduce its public hours and find this unacceptable. We 
call upon the CEO to fill all staff vacancies in the area. 
Order: Agreed. Refer to the Chief Executive Officer. 

 
Emergency Motion No. 4 in the name of Councillors Tina MacVeigh, 
Hazel de Nortúin and Pat Dunne 
This Area Committee has no confidence in the Chief Executive of the City 
and calls on him to resign his post. 
Order: Agreed.  Refer to the Lord Mayor. 

 
8   February 2019 Motions 

 
DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 

SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 
20th February 2019 

 
677 Councillor Hazel de Nortúin 

This Area Committee condemns the recent attacks on the De Le Salle 
site. This Area Committee also recognises the hard work done by local 
residents to see the site as a whole used for the community and will 
support their efforts going forward in every way we can. Given the lengthy 
planning process we're calling on DCC to lease the land on a short-term 
basis for furthering its use by the community and also keeping it secure. 
Order: Report to Councillor.  
 

678  Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh  
That this Area Committee agree that DCC/Minister for Heritage engage 
with the HSE to get conservation led improvements to the Quaker burial 
ground site on Cork Street, and that a study of its historic importance, who 
is buried there etc. be carried out. This is a hugely important historic burial 
ground, that dates back from 1690s. Unfortunately, it has been allowed to 
fall into disrepair and is quite neglected. Conservation led improvement 
schemes for St Luke's and St. James burial grounds, Liberties, are a 
model of how this might be done.  
Order: Agreed without debate.  
 

679 Councillor Michael Mullooly 
This Area Committee calls on Dublin City Council to use the powers given 
to it as a Planning Authority under Section 35 of the Planning and 
Development Act 2000 to take into account previous breaches of planning 
by developers when making planning decisions in respect of new 
applications by those developers or connected parties. 
Order: Report to Councillor.  

 
680 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

That Dublin City Council take action once and for all to address the poor 
heating situation in the Long Meadows Pitch & Putt Club House on 
Sarsfield Road, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10. I have called to the club on a 
couple of occasions and the staff and chairperson have told me, despite 
the contractor calling out, the heating is not fit for purpose. I witnessed an 
electric bill of over €2,000 as they try and heat the building with small 
electric heaters. 
Order: Report to Councillor.  

 

Page 5



4 
 

 
681 Councillor Ray McHugh 

This Area Committee agree that Dog poo bins be installed at the entrance 
to Willie Pearse Park, Crumlin and on Clonmacnoise Circle. 
Order: Report to Councillor.  

 
682 Councillor Daithí Doolan 

That this Area Committee calls on the owners of the De La Salle land, 
both the De La Salle Brothers and the developer, to properly secure and 
protect the buildings on the site. This includes schools and the monastery 
building, and this Area Committee calls on the developer to fully engage 
with residents before any planning permission is sought to develop the 
site. 
Order: Report to Councillor.  

 
683 Councillor Greg Kelly 

That this Area Committee welcomes the emergency motions passed on 
Monday 4th February at the full Council meeting in connection to the De La 
Salle lands and buildings in Ballyfermot. With the recent fires and damage 
to the building the cost of securing the building and lands has been left to 
DCC. We call on the owner of the land and buildings to reimburse DCC 
the full costs incurred and also the cost of the number of call outs by the 
Dublin Fire Services. 
Order: Report to Councillor.  

 
684 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh (as amended 20/2/18) 
 Regarding the site at Dolphins Barn that the Area Committee disposed 2 

years ago but remains in dereliction. The Development Department have 
confirmed that legal correspondence is ongoing between both parties but it 
is taking too long to resolve this. This Area Committee demand that DCC 
Development Department exercise their rights under the agreement to 
take back this site as soon as possible.  The members also requested a 
report on the current status, why it has not been expedited and why the 
Law Department has not exercised their powers on this matter. 
Order: Report to Councillor.  

 
685 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

The recently published Core Bus Corridor proposal by the National 
Transport Authority seeks to restrict traffic on the Lower Kimmage Road at 
the Sundrive Road Junction directing city bound traffic to Sundrive Road 
and onto Clogher Road. This Area Committee calls on the Area Manager 
to write to the NTA calling on them to clarify what impact the proposal will 
have on Sundrive Road and Clogher Road and what traffic management 
arrangements will have to be put in place for these roads and the 
surrounding area and to ask the Area Manager to prepare a report on this 
issue for the March Area Committee meeting. 
Order: Report to Councillor.  

 
686 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

That Dublin City Council identify a site / sites for the installation of electric 
charging points for cars in the Chapelizod Village Area.  Many houses in 
the area don't have a garden / garage, hence cannot have an electric car.  
The provision of such facilities going forward is something we as a local 
authority will have to address. 
Order: Report to Councillor.  

 
 

Page 6



5 
 

687 Councillors Daithí Doolan and Greg Kelly 
This Area Committee calls on An Bord Pleanala to agree a site visit with 
Drimnagh Residents Association at the former Dulux site to discuss the 
impact of the proposed development. 
Order: Agreed  
 

688 Councillor Greg Kelly 
This Area Committee calls on the Minister for Education to address the 
current anomaly in pay and conditions for school secretaries throughout 
this state. The Department must implement measures that would provide 
for entitlement and protections equivalent to clerical staff on public service 
pay scales. This Area Committee support the Campaign SOS ‘Support our 
Secretaries’ set up by members of the Trade Union, Fórsa. 
Order: Agreed without debate.  

 
689 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

That this Area Committee are frustrated and angry at the length of time it 
is taking to issue the report that Cllr Ní Dhálaigh called for and which the 
full membership of this Area Committee supported, over 8 months ago, on 
the social, economic and cultural impact the increased volume of 
development, but in particular the student, hotel and aparthotel are having 
on the Liberties community. We were told it was to be finished some time 
ago, and recently were informed that it would be issued before Christmas 
2018. Given the increasing levels of such accommodation in the area and 
the fears within our communities that their voices are being ignored this 
report is urgently needed. 
Order: Report to Councillor.  

 
690 Councillor Daithí Doolan 

This Area Committee expresses deep concern at the development of a 
'gang' mentality in both Drimnagh and Ballyfermot. This could become 
dangerous to both the young people involved and to the wider community. 
This Area Committee call on Gardaí, youth services, sporting and 
recreational clubs to work together with these people and give them 
positive alternatives.  
Order: Agreed.   

 
9   January Questions and Answers 

Order: Listed.   
 

 

10   AOB 
a)  The Members extended their best wishes to Gerry O’Donoghue, 

Project Manager of Dolphin’s House on his recent retirement 
from Dublin City Council. 

b)  The Vice Chairperson, Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh, chaired the 
meeting from at 5.00pm to 5.09pm. 

 

 

 
Councillor Pat Dunne 
Chairperson 
Wednesday 20 February 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 
Attendance: 
 
Members: Members: Members: 
Pat Dunne (Chairperson) Daithí Doolan Ray McHugh 
Michael Mullooly Hazel De  Nortúin Vincent Jackson 
Greg Kelly Tina McVeigh  
Rebecca Moynihan Criona Ni Dhalaigh  
 
 
Councillor Mary Freehill also attended. 
 
 
 

  

 
Officers   
Mary Taylor, Area Manager, South Central Area; 
Kay Noonan Cork, Acting Senior Executive Officer, Ballyfermot Area; 
Tony Smithers, Area Housing Manager, Liberties Area Office; 
Chris Butler, Area Housing Manager, Crumlin Area Office; 
Mary Noonan, Acting Community Development Officer, South Central Area; 
Miriam Flynn, Community Development Officer, South Central Area; 
Dave O’Donovan, Project Manager, Cherry Orchard;  
Gillian Corcoran, Project Estate Officer, South Central Area; 
Niall O’Neill, Area Engineer, Traffic Management & Control;  
Neil O’Donoghue, Executive ITS Officer, Traffic Management & Control 
Niall Dully, Administrative Officer, Building Control Division; 
Cora Roche, Staff Officer, South Central Area; 
Karen Clarke, Staff Officer, South Central Area; 
Cathriona Woulfe, Senior Staff Officer, South Central Area. 

  

 

Page 8



1 
 

 

Area Manager’s Report 

South Central Area Committee 

Wednesday 20th February 2019 

 

 
CRUMLIN/KIMMAGE ELECTORAL AREA 
 
South West Inner City Area Report 
 
Update on Kilmainham Mill 

Stakeholder engagement has begun with Save Kilmainham Mill Campaign and the 

Residents Association.  Bi-monthly meetings with both groups commence on the 21st of 

February and the Project Manager, Darragh Cunningham is in regular contact with both 

groups. 

Some basic site clearance work has been done to clear foliage at the rear of the Mill at the 

mill race and along the river. These works are basic health and safety works enabling the 

relevant specialists safe access around the building. The works were carried out following 

consultation with a licensed archaeologist, the Save Kilmainham Mill Campaign and the 

Residents Association who were in full support. 

A grant application has been made by Dublin City Council to the Historical Structures Fund 

(HSF) for the amount of €200,000. If successful the (HSF) funding and additional DCC 

funding will enable emergency stabilisation works to the building itself, roof repairs, propping 

of floors, mesh on windows, clearing of guano and other bio-hazards etc. These works will 

make the building safe for further surveys to commence. An asbestos survey should be 

commissioned in the coming weeks. Future usage options are yet to be explored until such a 

time as the building is safe to fully access. 

Shopfront Improvement Scheme 2019 
The Area Office’s Liberties Business Area Improvement Initiative has announced the latest 
tranche of funding available under the Shopfront Improvement Scheme. This year the 
scheme will cover The Liberties, Dolphins Barn, Rialto and Clanbrassil Street (Leonard’s 
Corner area). Applications are invited by 5th April. It is hoped to support 15 projects.  
 
Urban Regeneration: The GEC (Guinness Enterprise Centre) Expansion 
The Guinness Enterprise Centre has announced a €10m investment in its Taylors Lane 
premises to double the existing floor space and allow it to accommodate up to 160 startups 
and companies employing over 700, as well as 200 coworking spaces. The centre is 
supported by Dublin City Council through its LEO Office. A planning application has been 
submitted to Dublin City Council. 
 
This announcement comes ahead of a major regeneration plan for the 12acre St. James’s 
Gate Quarter by Diageo (with the first planning applications expected later this year) and the 
preparation by The Digital Hub Development Agency of a masterplan for its so-called 
Windmill site to the north of Thomas Street. In addition, a new workshare operator, Iconic 
Offices, will open its latest facility called The Grainhouse at 151 Thomas Street (former 
IAWS) in March. The scheme will accommodate 700 people when fully open. 
 
BusConnects 
The NTA has published outline plans for a number of high capacity corridors through South 
Central Area including Liffey Valley to City Centre, Clondalkin to Drimnagh, and Greenhills to 
City Centre. The Area Office is currently reviewing the suggested change proposed by 

Page 7Page 9



2 
 

BusConnects and the implications for Area Office public realm projects and the wider 
development agenda in the area. More details at www.busconnects.ie.   
 
St. Audoen’s Park, High Street 
Works to enhance St. Audoen’s Park by improving accessibility, permeability and circulation 
commenced in October 2017 are substantially complete with the park due to reopen in 
Spring 2019. The reconfigured western entrance will incorporate a play garden. 
 
Francis Street 
A Part 8 Planning Application was agreed at the September 2017 City Council meeting to 
provide for a more pedestrian friendly environment which encourages people to visit Francis 
Street and its environs on foot. The plan also supports the continued commercial operation 
of the Arts and Antiques quarter.  
 
The environmental improvement scheme comprises improvements to the public realm the 
full length of Francis Street, Hanover Lane and part of Dean Street. The proposed works will 
include the following: 
 

 Improvements to kerb build-outs  

 Footway repaving 

 Raised junction plateaus 

 Kerb buildouts to formalise parallel parking and loading bays 

 Landscaping 

 Greening 

 Bicycle stands,  

 Carriageway resurfacing 

 Raised pedestrian crossings and ramps 

 Public lighting improvements 
 
Detailed design work commenced in 2018 with a view to inviting tenders in quarter2 2019. It 
is expected that construction works will commence in late 2019/early 2020.  
 
Meath Street 
We are in the final stages of the preliminary design phase. We would hope to have another 
internal consultation by the end of February and another public consultation in March. 
 
Francis Street 
The Francis street EIP is continuing into the detailed design phase. It is envisaged that 
construction will commence in the autumn of 2019. 
 
Dolphin’s Barn 
The Dolphin’s Barn public realm improvement plan is awaiting resources from the 
Environment and Transportation Department to progress to the detailed design stage. 
 
Bluebell 
Work commenced in June 2018 on the Tallaght to Inchicore cable project and includes: 

 The demolition of the former ABC Hall 

 Provision of approximately 36 community allotments 
The Hall was demolished late last year whilst the allotments are expected to be completed in 
April. Applications for the allotments were invited from Monday, 4th February. 
 
Bluebell Community Council Report  
Bluebell Community Council has recently opened their new office at no 1 Bernard Curtis 
House. This office will provide information to residents, community groups, and all the 

Page 8Page 10

http://www.busconnects.ie/


3 
 

relevant agencies and service providers. Bluebell Community Council has selected Mr. 
Kieran Rose as Independent Chairperson and Clifford Sullivan as Legal and Business 
Consultant. Brian Maher of GVA Planning and Regeneration LTD has been retained by 
Bluebell Community Council to draft a plan for the area. A meeting between Planning 
Department, the Area Office, GVA and representatives of the Bluebell Community Council is 
scheduled for Tuesday the 26th of February.  
 
 
CRUMLIN/KIMMAGE AREA REPORT 
 
Crumlin Area Office Report 
 
Opening Hours 
Due to reduction in staff numbers, a review of opening hours may be required, with a 
possible temporary reduction in opening hours. 
 
Stannaway Court, Senior Citizens Complex 
New gas boilers have been installed in all units. Bord Gais have completed the installation of 
new gas lines and moved meters to the gable end of each block. Old gas lines will now be 
removed and insulation works can commence. Insulation works are due to commence 
before the end of February. New composite doors have been ordered and have a six week 
lead in to delivery and installation. It is likely to be mid to end of March when doors are 
installed. 
 
St. Agnes Park – Respond VHA 
Final snagging works are continuing but there is no confirmed handover date as of it yet. 
Respond has advised that all units have now been offered to and accepted by nominated 
applicants. Tenant induction has also been completed. Respond expect the units to be fully 
occupied by the end of February. It has been clarified that tenants will not be charged a 
deposit but will have to pay a week’s rent in advance. 
 
Raleigh Square- Tuath Housing Association 
Works are progressing on these units and they are on course for handover at the end of 
June 2019. Tuath have advised they will be seeking nominations from Allocations for the 33 
units in early June. 
 
Rafters Lane – WALK VHA  
Construction works are well underway on site. Due to the restricted access and confined 
nature of the site, the contractor has been given permission to bring in deliveries through 
Lissadel Court on one day a week. Deliveries are only allowed between 12.30pm and 
2.30pm on Tuesdays and this arrangement is working well at the moment. The practical 
completion date for this project is July 2019.  
 
CCTV at Benbulbin Road and Lissadel Road 
A new 360-degree camera with a range of 500 meters was installed on Benbulbin Road. 
This camera was providing high quality footage but was attacked and damaged. The camera 
has been repaired and was reinstalled on the 15th February. The contractor is trawling 
through footage to try and identify the individuals responsible for damaging the camera. 
 
We have requested a report from the Crime Prevention Officer in relation to improvements 
that can be undertaken in Brickfield Park to address anti-social behavior in this area. The 
Parks Section are currently removing trees at the Benbulbin end of the park which should 
allow greater visibility. 
 
 

Page 9Page 11



4 
 

 
Cooley Road 
Bollards have now been installed on the footpath at Cooley Road at the Children’s Hospital. 
This will help alleviate illegal parking which has resulted in a number of serious accidents 
and ongoing traffic delays. 
 
Community Report 
The SWIC/Crumlin Kimmage Community and Social Development Team continue to support 
new and existing community/residents groups and organisations who are actively engaged 
in their communities throughout the year. 
 
Maryland Grotto   
The final stage of the environmental enhancement of the Maryland Grotto is now under way, 
this entails the plastering and painting of the feature wall at the grotto, and some new plants 
to rejuvenate the area.   It is envisaged to hold a community celebration here during the 
summer. 
 
Celebrate all that’s great about Dublin 8 
Dublin City Council’s Area Office is delighted to be associated with the LOVE DUBLIN 8 
Community Fair which is taking place in St Patrick’s Cathedral on Tuesday 26th February.  
 
Over one hundred and twenty local groups will participate in this event including: 
Social & Community Groups & Networks, Voluntary Agencies, Adult Education, Youth 
Groups, Schools, Art / Culture / History Groups and local Businesses to name but a few. 
The event will commence at 5.20pm with an Evening Song recital by the St. Patrick’s 
Cathedral Choir. Doors will open to the public at 6.15pm 
 
Environmental and historical talks  
Eric Dempsey, renowned Ornithologist, will be presenting the first of a series of educational 
and informative talks on bird life in the city, the first of these presentations will take place on 
the 6th March at 11.00am in the Educate Together School in Griffith Barracks, the theme of 
this talk is aptly timed for the springtime arrival of our City visitors Apus Apus, the Common 

Swift. 
 
Historian in residence 
Historian in residence, Cathy Scuffil, will give one of her many and interesting talks about the 
Dublin connection to the “Way of Saint James” on the 20th March at 2.30pm in St James 
Church parish hall.   
 
Tidy Towns Conference 
Following the successful Better Links Stronger Communities Tidy Towns Conference 2019 
last month, a number of communities are now energised and motivated to get ready for their 
spring cleaning city neighborhood competitions.      
 
Crumlin Walkinstown Local Forum History Subgroup Historical Exhibition 
Dublin City Council Community Development team supported the forums history group on 
their Historical Exhibition with the title of: - 15* acres in Crumlin (*15 acres. 0roods. 
39perches) From Leicester house to a Children’s Hospital. The exhibition is taking place on 
Friday 22nd February 2019 in St Mary’s Parochial Hall, St Agnes Road, Crumlin, Dublin 12 
from 10.00a.m. - 6.00p.m. All materials which will be on display have been sourced from 
Pearse Street Library Archive by the Crumlin Walkinstown Local Forum History Sub Group. 
All welcome. See attached brochure for further details. 
 
 

Page 10Page 12



5 
 

 
International Women’s Day 
To celebrate International Women’s Day, Dublin City Council Community and Social 
Development is supporting Dublin12 Meditation Group.  They are hosting a free taster 
session in meditation, head, shoulder or massage and ear acupuncture in Fr. Kitt Court, on 
Thursday 7th March 2019 from 11a.m.-1p.m. Booking is essential, please ring 0852362491 
to reserve your place. 
 
Open Day from Community Groups 
Following on from the success of last years Open Day, Dublin City Council Community 
Development Team is assisting the Crumlin Walkinstown Local Forum in hosting an Open 
day for Community Groups on Saturday 9th of March between 11.00am - 3.00pm in the 
school hall, Scoil Una Naofa. The event will be an opportunity for groups to network among 
themselves as well as with the wider community. 
 
Lá le Prátaí at Flanagan’s Fields 
St. Patrick’s Day is the traditional day for planting early crops of potatoes and once again the 
Back of the Pipes Residents Association will be hosting their annual “Lá le Prátaí”. 
This much loved community event will take place in Flanagan’s Fields in Reuben Street.   
Local residents will gather to plant potatoes and take part in the Patrick’s Day Celebrations. 
Residents can expect some amazing culinary delights cooked from locally sourced food from 
the community garden not to mention great music and craic. 
 
 
 
BALLYFERMOT/DRIMNAGH ELECTORAL AREA 
 
Housing and Environmental Issues 
 
Cherry Orchard  
The contractors, MDY, are back on site since Tuesday 12th February and they have been 
mandated to carry out all outstanding works. They expect to have the remaining thirty-six 
houses ready for occupation within the next six weeks. Prior to this, some sub-contractors 
were back on the site under the direct provision of CHI. That work related to street lighting and 
enabling works in preparation for the main contractor returning. Applicants are being contacted 
by CHI and interviewed in preparation for offers of accommodation. 
 
Elmdale  
The new housing units in Elmdale in Cherry Orchard will be ready for letting shortly on a 
phased basis.  We expect that nineteen (19) units will be ready over the coming weeks and 
the Ballyfermot Area office is awaiting confirmation from Architects Section that the paperwork 
is in order and that the keys can be collected. The nineteen units consist of 11 two bedroom 
units and 8 three bedroom units.  We intend to hold additional viewings as the units become 
available for letting and all prospective tenants will be viewing the units before they make a 
final decision.  As with the previous Rapid build units in Cherry Orchard, we will set up 
interviews with MABS, Citizen information and the Community Welfare Officer before the 
prospective tenants sign for their tenancies. We have had expressions of interest from over 
300 applicants in the units.  
.  
Cornamona Court 
The tender process for this scheme has recently concluded and a report recommending an 
award of contract has been issued. Approval is now being sought from the Department of 
Housing, Planning and Local Government to award the contract.  
 
Environmental Works  

Page 11Page 13



6 
 

Outstanding work for Barneville include a stone planter with the name of the estate engraved 
to be installed at the entrance to the estate. The playground company have taken delivery of 
the play equipment and will be on site before the end of February to discuss the location of 
the football goals and standalone basketball hoop.  Sites have been identified throughout the 
area for additional trees which will be planted in the Spring.  
 
Outstanding works for California Hills include the crowning of trees and the planting of bulbs. 
It is hoped to upgrade two wheelchair accessible gates in the near future to prevent access 
to the Park by scramblers and horses.  
 
Chapelizod  
A Chapelizod Steering Group meeting was held on 6th February at which Parks Dept. and 
Public Domain staff were also in attendance. Issues around derelict sites, new 
developments, tidy towns proposals and the general upkeep of the area was discussed. 
Members were also invited to agree a date for a public meeting regarding the Springvale 
site. The date of 28th February to hold the public meeting with the residents of Chapelizod in 
St. Patrick’s School to discuss the proposals for the Springvale site was agreed.  
 
Business Community/Christmas  
The Area Office intends to arrange a meeting with the business owners in the Spring to 
discuss the impact of the improvements to the streetscape and to work with them with new 
initiatives.  We are hopeful that the row of shops adjacent to the Gala building will be painted 
soon as organised by the owners and it is hoped that this will encourage other shop owners 
to link with us regarding their own shop fronts.   
 
 
Community Report 
 
Community Environmental Projects 
The City Council is working with the Bluebell Environmental Group and local interests to 
redesign and redevelop the grass area opposite the shops. 
The Community Team is supporting transition year students from Mercy Secondary School, 
Goldenbridge to take part in the Young Social Innovation Programme. The girls hope to link 
in with older people in Bulfin Court and participate in environmental projects like planting and 
clean-up’s in the area. 
 
Ballyfermot Environmental Project  
The Ballyfermot Environmental Project will be opening its 2019 activities with a series of 
community clean ups which will take place over a four-week period. The first two will 
commence in the Drumfinn Park area and Cherry Orchard’s Croftwood Gardens. These 
environmental projects are joint collaborations between the Council, local residents, and 
various community groups and educational agencies.  
 
California Hills Math’s Eyes Project’s 
The California Hills Math’s Eyes Project’s planning stage is complete as the overall project 
nears fruition. It is planned that the final phase of the project will see an unveiling in early 
March following extensive collaboration between DCC’s Community and Parks Departments, 
St. Dominic’s school and Tallaght IT. 
 
Coiste Bhailethormaid   
Coiste Bhailethormaid is an exciting new Irish language and cultural heritage project 
designed to enhance and further promote all thing Irish in the Ballyfermot area. This local 
Coiste already has a full schedule of events lined up for March’s Seachtain na Gaeilge 
festivities with its centerpiece being a full Ceili for over two hundred second year students 
from local schools being hosted in the Ballyfermot Community Centre. The City Council is 

Page 12Page 14



7 
 

hoping to establish a similar group in the Drimnagh area to organise events for Seachtain na 
Gaeilge. Banners promoting Irish and Seachtain na Gaeilge will be placed along the main 
street, Ballyfermot aided by funding from the 2019 Discretionary Fund. 
 
 
 
 
History / Heritage group 
There is a big interest in local history in the Dublin 12 area. Dublin City Council brought 
those interested together and a new History / Heritage group has been established. The 
Council will support the group through providing seed funding, speakers, and organise visits 
to historical points of interests. The Council hopes that a committee will form and the group 
will grow. The next meeting will be held in Good Counsel GAA club on Wednesday the 6th of 
March.  
 
Social inclusion 

 Community Development is supporting Inchicore Works Resident Association to set  
            up a Men’s Shed.  

 Meetings are ongoing with Community Development, the H.S.E. and the Oblate   
            Community Employment Scheme to extend and retain the daily meals produced in  
            La Touche Court. It is also proposed to book a number of practitioners to host a   
            series of talks on health and wellbeing.    

 A new walking group has been established in Inchicore supported by Dublin City  
           Council. The Ring Walkers Group meets Monday to Friday at 9am and 7pm and   
            family walks will be on Saturday at 4pm and Sunday at 12:30pm. The Council has   
           also supplied hi-vis vests and walking leader training for group members. 

 The Council is working with the Ballyfermot Resource Centre to organise classes to  
           set up an ukulele band. The first classes will take place on 22nd Feb at 11:30AM  

 The Ballyfermot /Chapelizod Partnership grants are now open. The Community team   
           have worked with local organisations to submit applications for LCDC Local Facilities   
           Enhancement Fund and Creative Ireland for Cultural events. 
 
Cherry Orchard  
 
Christmas Panto - “The Fairies and the Shoemaker”, Basement Productions Theatre 
Company.   
We were very happy to have our second Christmas Panto in the centre during the month of 
February.  The Panto took place on the weekends of 2nd 3rd 9th & 10th with a 3pm show each 
day.  These shows were open to the public and had a good attendance.  There was also a 
special show put on, on 31st January for St. Ultan’s school which was greatly enjoyed by the 
younger pupils and teachers alike.  This was an opportunity for the Parents and Young 
Children from Cherry Orchard and Ballyfermot as well as other areas to come to a 
Pantomime and experience the fun and laughter enjoyed by so many other children around 
this time of year.  Most if not all attending would not have this opportunity if it was not 
brought to the centre.  Many thanks to all involved in putting on such a successful event 
which was attended by nearly 400 people. 
 
Mica’s New Hair Salon in the centre. 
Our new venture is coming along nicely with customers coming and going and creating a 
great buzz in the building.  It is an appointment only service and appointments are made 
directly through Mica the lady who operates it. 
 
Sequence/Ballroom Dancing Classes. 

Page 13Page 15



8 
 

This group meet every Wednesday and Friday mornings 11-12.30pm. The group are 
together less than a year and have grown from 4 members to over 40.  A great bunch of 
people and always inviting new members. 
 
Afternoon Activity Clubs. 
Our children’s clubs every afternoon Tues-Friday are going strong with over 60 children 
attending weekly. 
 
Boxing Club. 
This well-established club is going great and has a waiting list for new members. 
 
New Baton Twirling/Majorettes Group. 
Elite Twirling Academy started with us at the beginning of February.  So far the group are 
going great and have a large number of children attending.  The group have reached out 
and have members of the Traveling community as well as some homeless children 
attending.  This is a great thing for all involved and we are giving as much support as we can 
to the organisers. 
 
Men’s Music Shed. 
This group who started not too long ago with us have grown greatly in numbers and 
confidence.  From small beginnings around 5 men they now have over 20 in the group.  Not 
bad for a group who are together less than a year. 
 
Bingo Nights. 
We have two bingo nights in the centre.  Monday and Wednesday’s.  This is a popular past 
time especially for our older people. 
 
Cherry Orchard Tae Kwan Do Club. 
This group are together around a year and have taken on new members over that time.  
They are with us Tuesday and Thursday evenings. 
 
St. Vincent de Paul Food Bank. 
The food bank is continuing to provide a vital service to many individuals and families in the 
area with over 120 people collecting food bags every Friday from the centre. 
 
 

 
 
  

Page 14Page 16



9 
 

 

Page 15Page 17



Page 18



DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

20th March 2019 
 
Q1 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to urgently arrange for the repair to a shore that has collapsed 
outside (details supplied). This shore and path needs to be made safe today. 

 
Q2 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the area Manager to arrange for a continuous double yellow line outside (details 
supplied),  this gentleman is 80 year of age and twice in the last 6 months his gates have 
been damaged by cars/vans parking outside his home. He feels double yellow lines 
would help this problem. 

 

Q3 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange for an inspection of the green on (details supplied) 
and have the black area on the green reseeded with grass seed and the trees on the 
green checked and pruned etc. Also could we arrange for the weeds growing on the kerb 
be removed. 

 

Q4 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange for the island and bollards be upgraded at (details 
supplied), cars are turning at these bollards and are causing a dangerous situation. 

 

Q5 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange for an inspection of the constant smell of sewerage 
at the junction of (details supplied). This I believe is a health hazard and needs to be 
addressed. 

 

Q6 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to inform this councillor when the windows at (details 
supplied) will be replaced.  This resident is waiting over 4 years. 
 

Q7 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange for a general clean-up of (details supplied).  I 
feel this area needs regular cleaning. 
 

Q8 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to address the following issues at (details supplied1):- 
 
1.   Arrange for the footpath outside (details supplied2) be repaired urgently. 
2.   To examine the  large trees that are uprooting and causing damage in this area. 
3.   The removal of graffiti from the wall at the entrance to the estate. 

 
Q9 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to arrange for an examination of the road calming 
measures on (details supplied) with a view to increasing height to slow down traffic 
which is a problem on this road. 
 

Q10 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange for an inspection of the parking on (details 
supplied).  Residents are complaining of non-residents parking on a daily basis. 
 

Q11 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange for the examination of (details supplied). This 
road is being used as a rat run. Residents are very concerned for the safety of their 

Page 19



children out playing and for senior citizens. Traffic calming, a one-way system, or 
Children at Play signs would go some way to addressing the concerns of residents. 
 

Q12 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask the Area Manager to ask our Public Domain Unit to address the problem of 
the trees on Donore Road. The roots of the trees have come up through the footpath 
causing the pavement to crack. This presents a hazard for path users, particularly 
those with mobility issues. These trees are not suitable for this road and need to be 
replaced. Please provide this Councillor with a full report. 
 

Q13 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask our Area Manager to ask our Planning Department how we might address the 
issue of buildings on Hamilton Street who are rented out on Air BnB and who are 
using the laneway behind the buildings for access. 

 
Q14 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 

To ask the Area Manager for an update on the provision of pedestrian crossing at 
Herberton Road.  
 

Q15 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 
To ask the Area Manager to request a bin for the area around the Blackpitts Mosque.  
 

Q16 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 
To ask the Area Manager if she could arrange for cycle lane along Dolphins Barn 
which has significant potholes in it to be resurfaced. 
 

Q17 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 
To ask the Area Manager to install designated parking bays along O’Donovan Road.  
Currently residents park with two wheels on the footpath to ensure that pedestrians 
have footpath access that the bus can safely get by. However, recently residents 
have received notices to say it is illegal to park on the footpath and they will be 
clamped. There is a need to have residential parking along this road and designated 
parking bays could be installed (similar to parking bays along Reuben Street by 
Herberton apartments), which will ensure there is safe parking without blocking 
pedestrian access. To further ask the area Traffic Engineer to meet with residents to 
come to a long term parking solution for residents.   
 

Q18 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager to ensure the windows at (details supplied) are installed 
without further delay. There has been an unacceptably long delay and a series of 
broken appointments and still no windows installed. Can the windows be installed as 
soon as possible. 

 
Q19 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager for a progress report of the Drimnagh Task Force 
established to tackle the causes and consequences of anti-social behaviour in the 
Drimnagh area. Please include who is on the task force and when have they met?  

 
Q20 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager has the Council requested a meeting with the owners of 
the (details supplied) and if so what was the response?  
 

Q21 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager to ensure the lane way between (details supplied) is 
regularly cleaned.  

Page 20



 
Q22 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager does she expect the Rapid 2 at Elmdale to be delivered on 
time and to outline the timeframe for allocations. 
 

Q23 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager to outline in tabular form the number of burnt out cars 
collected in Dublin South Central for the years 2016, 2017, 2018 & so far in 2019?  
 

Q24 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager to outline in tabular form the amount of illegal waste 
collected, the cost of collection and disposal in Dublin South Central for years 2016, 
2017, 2018 & so far in 2019 and to outline what are the areas that suffer most from 
illegal dumping?  
 

Q25 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager can she ensure the pitches at Liffey Gaels are regularly cut 
as they are currently in a dangerous condition for younger players?   

 
Q26 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager can she provide the councillor with a report on the 
development at the Gort na Mona site, outlining the time frame of events to date, all 
correspondence with the Department of Housing pertaining to the site’s development 
and why there is such a delay in starting the development of this site?  
 

Q27 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager to outline a timeframe for the construction and completion 
of the extension to the Orchard Centre?   

 
Q28 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that Dublin City Council look at tidying up the grounds of 
the Conradh Na Gaeilge / Naiornra at Grattan Crescent, Inchicore, Dublin 8.  This 
group, who promote the Irish Language with cultural events, the Naiornra, are finding 
the looking after of the grounds impossible.  They need a little support with a clean-
up and a one off help from time to time to sort out same. The centre is surrounded by 
Grattan Crescent Park. 
 

Q29 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager that Dublin City Council’s Housing Department look into 
the following (details supplied). 
 

Q30 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
Can the Area Manager request the Parks Department to please ensure the heating 
system in the Long Meadows Pitch and Putt Club House is repaired to a reasonable 
standard and working effectively. For the past few months and despite numerous 
attempts to repair same, it is still not heating this building, resulting in large electric 
bills as the centre is heated by electrical fires / appliances. 
 

Q31 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager can Dublin City Council please ensure that the Cornamona 
Site on Kylemore Road next to Kylemore College and the Church of Our Lady of the 
Assumption is cleaned of waste. Neighbours in the vicinity are fed up with illegal 
dumping at this location. I am aware it will not be properly solved until the housing 
construction commences here at this location, which I believe is to start before the 
end of May this year 2019. 

Page 21



Q32 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager can Dublin City Council please look into the chronic living 
conditions of (details supplied). 
 

Q33 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager that the following be looked at as a matter of urgency 
(details supplied). 
 

Q34 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to please outline the eligibility criteria for Housing Supports 
for both DCC owned properties and privately owned dwellings to include supports for: 

 

 Windows 

 Heating 

 External Wall Insulation 
Do we currently have an application form in which citizens can apply for supports and 
if so can I have one? 
 

Q35 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to please look into the following housing application 
request (details supplied). 
 

Q36 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to please report on the following (details supplied). 

 
Q37 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to please indicate the level of litter fines in the South 
Central Area and the resources available to staff to try and enforce bye-laws and 
local initiatives etc. 
 

Q38 Councillor Michael Mullooly 
To ask the Area Manager what criteria are used to determine where a pedestrian 
crossing is placed and where a location is not suitable for a pedestrian crossing. 
 

Q39 Councillor Michael Mullooly 
To ask the Area Manager when the next phase of the development of walking and 
cycling infrastructure along the Grand Canal between Sally's Bridge, Clogher Road 
and Inchicore is to take place and if it going out to public consultation. 
 

Q40 Councillor Michael Mullooly 
To ask the Area Manager when the repair and resurfacing works to the Lower 
Kimmage Road, for which money has been allocated, are due to begin, whether 
these works will include Riversdale Grove a small cul-de-sac off the Lower Kimmage 
Road, which is in a desperate state of disrepair. 
 

Q41 Councillor Michael Mullooly 
To ask the Area Manager what traffic control measures and parking measures are 
proposed for Drimnagh given the increased traffic, rat running and parking issues in 
the area. 
 

Q42 Councillor Michael Mullooly 
To ask the Area Manager what is the protocol where Irish Water carry out works and 
fail to reinstate roads and footpaths to a proper standard. Does Dublin City Council 
carry out inspections? Where roads and footpaths have not been reinstated to a 

Page 22



proper standard does DCC require Irish Water to carry out further remedial work? Is 
there a sign off procedure where DCC signs off on the reinstatement works as being 
of a proper standard? In Dublin 12, where there are a number of examples of poor 
reinstatement works by Irish Water, has DCC had cause to require Irish Water to 
carry out further reinstatement works? 
 

Q43 Councillor Críona Ní Dhalaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to list the voids in area L. 
 

Q44 Councillor Críona Ní Dhalaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to give a time frame for (details supplied). 
 

Q45 Councillor Críona Ní Dhalaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to update this Councillor on the anti-social behaviour in 
(details supplied) and what is being done to address it? 
 

Q46 Councillor Críona Ní Dhalaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to update this Councillor on the plans for (details supplied) 
 

Q47 Councillor Críona Ní Dhalaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to outline in tabular form the amount of illegal waste 
collected, the cost of collection and disposal in Dublin 8 for the past 5 years. 
 

Q48 Councillor Críona Ní Dhalaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to report on the following (details supplied). 
 

Q49 Councillor Críona Ní Dhalaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to update this Councillor on the planning application for 
(details supplied). 
 

Q50 Councillor Pat Dunne 
To ask the Area Manager to confirm ownership of the piece of vacant land at (details 
supplied) and if the Manager intends to do anything with the site? Also can the area 
be cleared of illegally dumped waste and litter? 
 

Q51 Councillor Pat Dunne 
To ask the Area Manager to replace the tarmac path at (details supplied) with 
concrete? This has been an eyesore for many years and to replace it with concrete 
will give the area an uplift. 
 

Q52 Councillor Pat Dunne 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange to have the bushes and shrubbery on the 
boundary wall on Rafter’s Avenue, Dublin 12 removed. Residents complain of rats 
and illegal dumping at and around these bushes. 
 

Q53 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager ensure that the grass cutting on local greens in Dublin 12 is 
carried our professionally and regularly this year, and that the edges are also cut to 
avoid the growth of weeds. Residents complain that this service has dis-improved in 
recent years since this work has been contracted out. Can the Area Manager also 
ensure that the growth of weeds on our footpaths and kerbsides is properly dealt 
with? 
 
 
 

Page 23



Q54 Councillor Pat Dunne 
To ask the Area Manager to ask our Roads Traffic Section to extend the double 
yellow lines in the cul-de-sac at (details supplied) to the front of this house so as to 
deter non-residents all day parking at this location.  This householder reports that his 
vision when exiting from his driveway is blocked by parked cars and on a recent 
occasion damage was caused to his gate by a non-resident motorist. 
 

Q55 Councillor Pat Dunne 
To ask the Area Manager to ask our Roads and Traffic Section to install road ramps 
or other traffic calming measures on Derry Road, Crumlin. If not possible can 
Children at Play signs be erected? 
 

Q56 Councillor Pat Dunne 
To ask the Area Manager to ask our Roads Department to resurface the roadways 
on Clonard Road between Armagh and Stannaway Road. Also Derry Road is bad 
coming out onto Cashel Road. The 3 tonne limit is not enforced and heavy trucks are 
using some roads for short cuts damaging the roadways. 

 

Page 24



Page 1 of 2

Item Enquiry SP Ref Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

05/03/2019
South Central Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 20/03/2019)
8 Items

1 7003400 INCHICORE ROAD
(SC)

Dublin 8Clearway request to review parking at the
indented area outside the Hilton
Hotel

1Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

SR not recommended – After several site visits and monitoring
from the Area Engineer it was not recommended to modify this
location as there were no issues witnessed. These spaces are
providing an essential place for cars and taxi’s to pull in to drop
passengers off in a safe manner. Residents should report illegal
parking to Dublin Street Parking Services tel no. 6022500 or to
the local Gardai. Please note that this area will remain closely
monitored.

18/06/2018

2 7005301 CHAPELIZOD HILL
ROAD (SC)

Dublin 20Add Pedestrian
Phase

Add pedestrian phase for safety
of older residents of Annamore
Court.

0Member of
the Public

Recommended SR Recommended - this has been put forward for the 2019
Works Programme.

08/10/2018

3 7005339 CASHEL ROAD (SC) Dublin 12Children Crossing
Sign

Cars Speeding around the circle. 0InternalNot
Recommended

SR not recommended - This area is within the new speed limits
set by Dublin City Council for residential areas in parts of the city.
As part of the new limits, "Speed limit" signs are erected at all
points where there is a change of speed limit. Incorporated into
these new signs there is a "Home Zone" and "Slow Zone" sign
along with the speed limit. This is to warn motorists that it’s a
residential area and to expect children. It is felt that this sign
would be sufficient to warn motorists.

09/10/2018

4 7006794 MEATH STREET (SC) Dublin 8Loading Bay Outside The Little Flower Centre
and Fashion Parade.

0InternalRecommended Stat 1 –Install Pay & Display starting from a point 3m south of the
gable wall of Number 8 Meath Street (C&N Butchers) stretching
southerly for 13.5m. Mon-Sat 07.00-19.00.
Stat 2 Install a Loading bay starting from a point 16.5m south of
the gable wall of Number 8 Meath Street (C&N Butchers)
stretching southerly for 13.5m. Mon-Sat 07.00-19.00.

10/01/2019

5 7007243 GALTYMORE ROAD
(SC)

Dublin 12Yield Sign Stop sign or Yield sign 0Member of
the Public

Recommended SR Recommended - Following investigation, it is recommended
that a yield sign would be sufficient at this junction as there is
good visibility. It is recommended a Yield sign RUS026
accompanied by a Yield Line RRM 018  be provided at the
junction of Galtymore Road/Cooley Road. In order to alleviate
confusion over junction priority.

05/02/2019

6 7007244 GALTYMORE CLOSE
(SC)

Dublin 12Children Crossing
Sign

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

SR not recommended - This area is within the new speed limits
set by Dublin City Council for residential areas in parts of the city.
As part of the new limits, "Speed limit" signs are erected at all
points where there is a change of speed limit. Incorporated into
these new signs there is a "Home Zone" and "Slow Zone" sign
along with the speed limit. This is to warn motorists that it’s a
residential area and to expect children. It is felt that this sign
would be sufficient to warn motorists

05/02/2019

P
age 25



Page 2 of 2

Item Enquiry SP Ref Road PostTopic Request Description SecRequest ByTag Result Tag Comments Received

05/03/2019
South Central Area - TAG Meeting Minutes for Noting

(Area Committee Date: 20/03/2019)
8 Items

7 90046862 SP_35712 RAYMOND STREET
(SC)

Dublin 8One-Way System requests review of one way
systems in Tenters area (too few
to exit)

0Member of
the Public

Not
Recommended

SR not recommended. It is not possible to introduce one way
system. A one way system is not recommended for a number of
reasons as follows: • It is considered that a one-way system
would lead to increased traffic speeds and reduce pedestrian
safety. • A one way system would cause inconvenience to
residents on and increase traffic on adjoining Roads. • A one-way
system would also hinder emergency services access, Garda
operations and other service vehicles

04/01/2017

8 90049199 SP_38072 LANDEN ROAD (SC) Dublin 10Speed Ramps
(Rescind)

Request to remove ramp outside
189 Landen Rd

0TDNot
Recommended

Not recommended to remove the ramp. However, after a site
inspection the Area Engineer and Road Maintenance Department
would agree that this ramp will need to be resurfaced. This will be
done as part of the works program.

17/05/2017

P
age 26



Traffic Service Requests,  

Status Report at 15/02/2019  

South Central Area Committee Meeting 20/03/2019 
 

 

Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Service Request Statistics 

 

 

 

 

Breakdown of TAG Requests currently open on Confirm 

 

Stage 1 5 

Stage 2 121 

Stage 3 4 

Stage 4 38 

Stage 5 21 

Note: 1 Appeal. 

General traffic service requests not requiring Statutory Orders. 
 
Total Non Tag requests received since previous 
report 

19 

Total Non Tag requests currently open on 
Confirm. 

132 

 

 

Traffic Advisory Group Status Reports 

Explanation of Stages: 

 Stage 1 -  Set up file, Assignment to Engineer, etc 

 Stage 2 - Assessment, Site surveys, review statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 3 - Consultations, with Garda, Dublin Bus, Luas, NTA, Local residents / businesses, etc 

 Stage 4 - Decision, TAG group, statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 5 - Implementation, signs, lines, construction, signal changes, certifications, etc 

 

No. TAG Requests received since previous report  
24 

Total TAG Requests currently open on Confirm 
190 

Page 27



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Monday 18 February 2019
190 Items

Status

1 7007229 O'CURRY ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming Traffic calming measures for this location. 04/02/2019 14:27:091

2 7007246 MOUNTSHANNON ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming Measures to deal with speeding and
increased traffic from hospital.

05/02/2019 16:03:001

3 7007247 MAYFIELD ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming Measures to deal with speeding and
increased traffic from hospital.

05/02/2019 16:07:061

4 7007340 BRICKFIELD DRIVE (SC) Double Yellow Lines DYLs for this junction. 11/02/2019 13:35:111

5 7007440 SPERRIN ROAD (SC) Speed Ramps 30 km/h speed signs, "School Ahead"
signage & work on speed ramps for this
location.

14/02/2019 16:32:041

6 90046705 SP_35198 BASIN VIEW (SC) Disab Park Bay General outside the Educate Together National
School

22/11/2016 16:07:032

7 90047487 SP_36341 DUBLIN CITY Cycle Track request for cycle lanes
 
also Ballyfermot Road

03/02/2017 10:56:452

8 90047618 SP_36472 BASIN STREET LOWER (SC) Cycle Track request for cycle lane on Basin View 09/02/2017 15:53:322

9 90048157 SP_37017 MARROWBONE LANE (SC) Pedestrian Crossing adjacent to St. Catherines Sports Centre and
DCC Road Maintenance paving depot.

15/03/2017 09:28:312

10 90048270 SP_37132 BRAITHWAITE STREET (SC) No Parking on Braithwaite Street & Summer Street
South.

22/03/2017 13:11:172

11 90048435 SP_37298 OSCAR SQUARE (SC) P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of Scheme on the road. 03/04/2017 10:47:432

12 90048446 SP_37309 SAINT MICHAELS TERRACE
(SC)

Disab Park Bay Residential outside No. 15, St. Michael's Terrace,
Blackpitts.

03/04/2017 14:40:022

13 90048570 SP_37433 BRIDGE STREET LOWER (SC) Add Pedestrian Phase Full wrap-around 07/04/2017 08:51:192

14 90048716 SP_37583 GRATTAN CRESCENT (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian crossing, Inchicore National
School, Grattan Crescent

19/04/2017 13:23:312

15 90048801 SP_37669 STANNAWAY ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian or Zebra Crossing
across Stannaway Road at the Sundrive
Road junction.

25/04/2017 13:08:512

16 90048834 SP_37703 CHAPELIZOD ROAD (SC) Cycle Track request for more cycle lanes 26/04/2017 16:17:132

17 90048856 SP_37725 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing No pedestrian on Kylemore Rd south of
Bluebell Avenue, pedestrians have to walk
further up Kylemore Rd in order to cross.

27/04/2017 12:15:112

18 90049050 SP_37921 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing on all legs of the junction. 08/05/2017 20:21:242

19 90049051 SP_37922 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing on the west leg of the junction. 08/05/2017 20:22:502

20 90049155 SP_38028 CHAPELIZOD ROAD (SC) Cycle Track through the village 15/05/2017 16:53:282

21 90049199 SP_38072 LANDEN ROAD (SC) Speed Ramps (Rescind) Request to remove ramp outside 189
Landen Rd

17/05/2017 11:57:192

22 90049737 SP_38615 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Bus Stop Marking New Bus cage marking and pole for stop
relocation at Clancy Quay SCR

09/06/2017 12:42:382

23 90049816 SP_38699 GREENVILLE AVENUE (SC) P&D/Permit Park (Extend Area) Request to extend area outside 5 Greenville
Avenue to include two parking spaces.

14/06/2017 11:49:582

24 90049832 SP_38715 CRUMLIN ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing pedestrian crossing at junction of R110 /
R111,

14/06/2017 16:17:002

Page 1 of 9

Page 28



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Monday 18 February 2019
190 Items

Status

25 90050178 SP_39065 MEATH STREET (SC) Pedestrian Zone carry out necessary feasibility study for the
street

06/07/2017 12:50:192

26 90050518 SP_39416 EMMET ROAD (SC) P&D/Permit Park (Extend Area) outside No.s 28 & 30. 27/07/2017 13:46:532

27 90050559 SP_39457 EMERALD SQUARE (SC) Double Yellow Lines outside and adjacent to No. 1. 31/07/2017 15:21:502

28 90051520 SP_40429 BRIDGEFOOT STREET (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Request for pedestrian crossing at site of
new park

22/09/2017 10:24:382

29 90051548 SP_40457 WORMWOOD GATE (SC) Pedestrian Crossing across Wormwood Gate at junction with
Bridge Street

26/09/2017 00:00:002

30 90051642 SP_40552 BULFIN COURT (SC) Traffic Calming on the section from Bulfin Road to Thornton
Heights.

03/10/2017 00:00:002

31 90051765 SP_40679 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Pedestrian Crossing Outside Gael Scoil Inchicore 06/10/2017 00:00:002

32 7000087 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) TAG General Engineer Query Cycle Lane at Mc Donalds leading up to
traffic lights

27/10/2017 10:08:552

33 7000151 DRIMNAGH ROAD (SC) Bus Lane Extend the outbound bus lane on Drimnagh
Road from Balfe Road through the junction
with Walkinstown Road to tie in with the
existing bus lane on the Naas Road.

03/11/2017 09:55:362

34 7000152 WALKINSTOWN ROAD (SC) Bus Lane Extend the inbound bus lane on Walkinstown
Road to the stop line at the junction with the
Drimnagh Road.

03/11/2017 09:58:392

35 7000477 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Right Turn Filter Light Right filter light at the junction of SCR and
the Royal Hospital. Turn from South Circular
Road onto High Road, Kilmainham.

21/11/2017 09:21:282

36 7000570 CHAPELIZOD ROAD (SC) Cycle Track Cycle track on inbound footpath across form
Chapelizod Church.

24/11/2017 10:01:382

37 7000653 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

P&D/Permit Parking at Nos. 480-490. partial scheme.Other
residents notified

29/11/2017 10:40:532

38 7000666 SUNDRIVE ROAD (SC/SE) Cycle Track on Sundrive Road. 29/11/2017 12:43:272

39 7000738 LANDEN ROAD (SC) No Right Turn (Amend) amend 'no right turn'  from Kylemore Rd onto
Landen Rd to operate during peak times
only.

04/12/2017 15:05:492

40 7001292 OSCAR SQUARE (SC) Disab Park Bay Residential outside No.16 18/01/2018 12:36:492

41 7001340 LE FANU ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian crossing at St. John's College
Ballyfermot.

22/01/2018 12:35:582

42 7001528 GRAND CANAL QUAY (SE) Cycle Track Cycle track along road 01/02/2018 09:36:162

43 7001529 JAMES'S STREET (SC) Cycle Track Extend cycle lane towards luas tracks 01/02/2018 10:11:412

44 7001530 JAMES'S STREET (SC) Clearway (Amend Hours) extned hours of clearway cars constantly
blocking cycle lane

01/02/2018 10:12:562

45 7001637 STANNAWAY ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines at the junction of Stannaway Road and
Ferns Road due to vans parking and
obstructing the view.

09/02/2018 12:10:042

46 7001731 JOHN'S LANE WEST (SC) P&D Parking (Rescind) Removal of parking bay outside Saint Johns
National School

20/02/2018 09:59:532

47 7002016 CONVENT LAWNS (SC) Parking Restrictions in Convent Lawns. 14/03/2018 13:34:032

Page 2 of 9

Page 29



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Monday 18 February 2019
190 Items

Status

48 7002175 MONASTERBOICE ROAD (SC) Disab Park Bay Residential Disabled parking bay outside house. 26/03/2018 12:57:082

49 7002451 PIM STREET (SC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) extend the dyls by 6 meters to the same
length as the continuous white line .

17/04/2018 08:33:112

50 7002666 BROOKFIELD ROAD (SC) Yellow Box o/s the new entrance to St James's Hospital. 01/05/2018 16:08:032

51 7002819 RAVENSDALE DRIVE (SC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) extended on Ravensdale Drive 10/05/2018 10:02:482

52 7002843 CEANNT FORT (SC) P&D/Permit Parking Parking solutions for the estate. 11/05/2018 17:48:312

53 7002903 KYLEMORE ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at junction with La Fanu Rd 17/05/2018 09:47:572

54 7002979 BELLEVUE (SC) Coach Parking Change Bus Stop to Coach Bay 21/05/2018 16:29:352

55 7003310 SAINT ANTHONY'S ROAD
(SC)

Disab Park Bay General 2 bays outside new Enable Ireland Offices 12/06/2018 15:34:372

56 7003400 INCHICORE ROAD (SC) Clearway request to review parking at the indented
area outside the Hilton Hotel

18/06/2018 12:34:312

57 7003486 FRANCIS STREET (SC) Double Yellow Lines At Dublin Bikes Stand 22/06/2018 09:11:292

58 7003731 KIMMAGE ROAD WEST (SC) Pedestrian Crossing installation of pedestrian markers at
entrance to Ben Dunne Gym

11/07/2018 10:53:212

59 7003858 HERBERTON ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines To improve visibility & safety near busy
junction.

18/07/2018 14:57:222

60 7003919 GREENVILLE PARADE (SC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) Extend DYLS full way along railing as
emergency vehicles are finding it difficult to
access terrace

23/07/2018 15:26:412

61 7004014 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Clearway (Amend Hours) extend hours of clearway between above
roads

30/07/2018 11:49:442

62 7004039 WALKINSTOWN AVENUE (SC) Right Turn Filter Light Without the aid of a right turn traffic light,
motorists find turning right at this junction
very unsafe and difficult to gauge

31/07/2018 09:26:092

63 7004065 CEANNT FORT (SC) Zebra Crossing Two zebra crossings required for elderly
residents.

31/07/2018 17:31:322

64 7004175 CASHEL ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian Crossing where Cashel Road
meets Captains Road

08/08/2018 10:14:422

65 7004347 BROOKFIELD (SC) Traffic Calming Brookfield area 17/08/2018 10:08:572

66 7004541 BRIDGE STREET LOWER (SC) Double Yellow Lines between Oliver Bond Street and the Taxi
Rank at the Brazen Head.

28/08/2018 13:20:252

67 7004563 SAINT CATHERINE'S LANE
WEST (SC)

Double Yellow Lines Cars parked in laneway making it difficult for
pedestrians to walk through.

29/08/2018 11:16:132

68 7004564 HANBURY LANE (SC) Disab Park Bay General Request for 2 Bays near The Primary Care
Centre.

29/08/2018 11:25:412

69 7004596 Q 23 18/07/2018KILLEEN ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines on the road 30/08/2018 09:00:572

70 7004743 CHERRY ORCHARD PARK
(SC)

Speed Ramps There are ramps on two sides of the green
but none on the other which is causing cars
to drive down that one at speed.

06/09/2018 12:25:452

71 7004854 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Yellow Box St James Terrace 13/09/2018 08:36:092

Page 3 of 9

Page 30



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Monday 18 February 2019
190 Items

Status

72 7004951 BANGOR ROAD (SC) Disab Park Bay Residential 168, Bangor Road, Kimmage, Dublin 12 19/09/2018 13:09:442

73 7005011 INGRAM ROAD (SC) Disab Park Bay Residential on the road 21/09/2018 09:09:382

74 7005071 BRIDGEFOOT STREET (SC) Traffic Calming Review of junction 25/09/2018 12:30:052

75 7005171 MEATH STREET (SC) Bus Stop Marking (Rescind) outside Butchers, unused bus stop , can this
be removed. no longer used. people getting
fined at bus stop although no longer in use.

01/10/2018 16:48:132

76 7005212 LISLE ROAD (SC) Yellow Box Since the new signals were turned on last
week at Windmill road Crumlin Village we
have received a request for a yellow box at
the exit of Lisle road as the new signals are
making it harder to get out of this junction

03/10/2018 09:56:502

77 7005226 OLD NAAS ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian crossing for high number of
employees crossing between buildings.

03/10/2018 12:45:362

78 7005301 CHAPELIZOD HILL ROAD (SC) Add Pedestrian Phase Add pedestrian phase for safety of older
residents of Annamore Court.

08/10/2018 14:42:402

79 7005339 CASHEL ROAD (SC) Children Crossing Sign Cars Speeding around the circle. 09/10/2018 15:50:102

80 7005340 CASHEL ROAD (SC) Speed Ramps On the road 09/10/2018 15:51:492

81 7005360 SAINT MARY'S ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming On St. Mary's Road, St. Agnes Road and
Sundrive Road.

11/10/2018 11:46:422

82 7005728 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

P&D/Permit Parking Parking scheme for this location. 01/11/2018 13:30:292

83 7005772 CAPTAIN'S ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming Raising centre of roundabout, slow down
signs or other traffic calming measures.

05/11/2018 15:35:462

84 7005773 BIGGER ROAD (SC) One-Way System To prevent motorists using wrong side of
road, when turning from O'Brien Rd.

05/11/2018 15:54:052

85 7005798 SLIEVENAMON ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming Measures to slow down vehicles turning from
Dolphin Rd, in order to chase the green light
at Suir Bridge.

06/11/2018 15:31:592

86 7005803 NEW STREET SOUTH (SC/SE) Left Turn Filter Light Additional red traffic filter light for vehicles
turning onto The Coombe.

06/11/2018 17:07:392

87 7005967 JAMES'S WALK (SC) Traffic Calming Being used as a rat run. 14/11/2018 11:18:402

88 7005971 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Zebra Crossing On the road 14/11/2018 13:28:342

89 7006019 RAVENSDALE DRIVE (SC) Double Yellow Lines on the road 15/11/2018 15:32:202

90 7006025 RAVENSDALE PARK (SC) Pedestrian Crossing dificult for pedestrians to cross (see
attachment received in Irish)

15/11/2018 16:35:132

91 7006026 RAVENSDALE PARK (SC) Right Turn Filter Light From Kimmage Rd into Ravensdale Park 15/11/2018 16:37:302

92 7006046 SLIEVEBLOOM PARK (SC) Double Yellow Lines DYLs for corners to allow access for
emergency vehicles.

16/11/2018 11:45:592

93 7006145 SAINT LAURENCE ROAD (SC) Traffic Lights (new) Additional light for visibility purposes for
traffic turning left over bridge towards
Phoenix Park.

21/11/2018 17:55:442

94 7006291 Q 14 21/11/2018RIALTO COTTAGES (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Where Rialto Cottages meet the Luas line 30/11/2018 10:11:022

Page 4 of 9

Page 31



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Monday 18 February 2019
190 Items

Status

95 7006296 Q. 36 21/11/2018LE FANU ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming on the road 30/11/2018 11:05:522

96 7006314 CHAPELIZOD BYPASS (SC) Yellow Box (Extend) Extend yellow box to ensure traffic from
Ballyfermot & Chapelizod both have
sufficient space.

30/11/2018 12:52:242

97 7006333 CRUMLIN ROAD (SC) Right Turn Filter Light Change the newly installed pedestrian traffic
lights in Crumlin Village to provide for a filter
arrow to allow a right hand turn onto
Windmill Road.

03/12/2018 15:12:242

98 7006345 SARSFIELD ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines Dublin Bus say drivers are experiencing long
delays with cars now parking further up
Sarsfield Road.

03/12/2018 17:00:192

99 7006352 SAINT LAURENCE ROAD (SC) Yellow Box On the road 04/12/2018 11:22:052

100 7006360 NEW IRELAND ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) At the corner of New Ireland Road and
Pormahon Drive is extended down New
Ireland Road.

04/12/2018 12:49:422

101 7006440 EWINGTON LANE (SC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) Can the dyls be extended to cover the top
part of the cul-de-sac as cars are parking
here, getting clamped, and then getting
refunded. Can the remainder of the lane way
be examined for dyls as wel.

07/12/2018 09:26:502

102 7006532 FRANCIS STREET (SC) Zebra Crossing Zebra crossing for this location. 12/12/2018 13:13:022

103 7006533 FRANCIS STREET (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian crossing at this location. 12/12/2018 13:24:182

104 11073721 2413826 INCHICORE ROAD (SC) Car Club Bay (Rescind) There is a Car Club Bay on inchicore Road
opposite Kilmainham Gaol, however only
provate cars park in it.
Can this be reviewed and returned to pay
and display if not in use?

08/01/2019 12:00:522

105 7006743 DOLPHIN ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Pedestrian crossing with this junction. 08/01/2019 13:00:392

106 7006745 EMMET ROAD (SC) Loading Bay Loading bay for o/s Mower City Ireland. 08/01/2019 15:38:542

107 7006746 SAINT AGNES PARK (SC) Disab Park Bay General Disabled parking bay for St John of God
Community Services outside No. 60.

08/01/2019 16:20:122

108 7006754 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Double Yellow Lines Outside number 1,2 &3 Grantham Close 09/01/2019 11:35:442

109 7006789 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD WEST
(SC)

Pedestrian Crossing A new signalised pedestrian crossing is
proposed to replace the current uncontrolled
crossing at the junction of the exit from
Heuston Car park and the Luas line

10/01/2019 12:19:572

110 11073876 2414718 COLEPARK DRIVE (SC) Speed Ramps the ramps may need to be reviewed as cars
are not slowing down and underage
teenagers are using the street as a way to
"joyride" their illegal motorbikes, most likely
because it is a long stretch of road..

10/01/2019 14:31:052

111 7006794 MEATH STREET (SC) Loading Bay Outside The Little Flower Centre and
Fashion Parade.

10/01/2019 15:47:202

112 7006808 BALLYFERMOT ROAD (SC) Yellow Box (Extend) Extend the yellow box across the full junction
of Ballyfermot Road/Cleggan Park.

11/01/2019 11:40:542

113 7006935 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

TAG General Engineer Query Parking bay between BS 1348 and Spencer
Street South be removed

21/01/2019 09:32:142

Page 5 of 9

Page 32



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Monday 18 February 2019
190 Items

Status

114 7006980 BROOKFIELD ROAD (SC) Traffic Lights (new) Traffic lights or yellow box for this location. 21/01/2019 16:07:122

115 7006988 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Double Yellow Lines on approach to Bus Stop No. 1385 (between
Greenville Terrace and St Alban's Road, in
to town side).

22/01/2019 10:25:372

116 7006992 SUNDRIVE ROAD (SC/SE) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) We are kindly requesting for the exisitng
double line to be extended to the very end
house, 87, so as we can access our homes

22/01/2019 14:30:042

117 7007036 LOURDES ROAD (SC) One-Way System One-way system for this location. 23/01/2019 17:22:402

118 7007100 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Continuous White Line Place markings to highlight that there are
two lanes.

28/01/2019 12:30:422

119 7007101 SUIR ROAD (SC) Continuous White Line Place markings to highlight that there are
two lanes.

28/01/2019 12:34:042

120 7007124 KIMMAGE ROAD WEST (SC) Traffic Calming Traffic calming measures needed due to
increased traffic on this road.

29/01/2019 15:09:462

121 7007182 CORK STREET (SC) TAG General Engineer Query 31/01/2019 16:30:212

122 7007237 Q 7 SCAC 16/01/19CLEGGAN PARK (SC) Traffic Lights (new) at junction with Ballyfermot Road 05/02/2019 11:54:582

123 7007243 GALTYMORE ROAD (SC) Yield Sign Stop sign or Yield sign 05/02/2019 15:35:302

124 7007244 GALTYMORE CLOSE (SC) Children Crossing Sign 05/02/2019 15:39:232

125 7007272 SUSAN TERRACE (SC) Double Yellow Lines DYLs for this location. 06/02/2019 12:35:242

126 7007294 SUIR ROAD (SC) Right Turn Filter Light where Suir Road meets Bulfin Road 07/02/2019 16:13:012

127 90048610 SP_37475 DONORE ROAD (SC) P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of Scheme. 07/04/2017 17:07:363

128 90049803 SP_38685 SHANNON TERRACE (SC) P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme. 13/06/2017 15:13:163

129 90049995 SP_38880 CLARENCE MANGAN ROAD
(SC)

P&D/Permit Parking from 07:00 to 24:00,
in conjunction with a one-way system (see
SR38881).
 
 

26/06/2017 11:37:593

130 7001900 WARRENMOUNT PLACE (SC) P&D/Permit Park (Change
Hours)

Extension of Pay & display Hours  24/7 06/03/2018 13:17:273

131 90044747 SP_12251 JOHN DILLON STREET (SC) School Ahead Sign on Thomas Davis St Sth & John Dillon St. 12/05/2014 10:52:454

132 90044771 SP_12638 BRIDGEFOOT STREET (SC) Pedestrian Crossing Across Bridgefoot Street at Usher's Quay. 29/05/2014 13:32:154

133 90044854 SP_14722 SAINT AGNES ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing From Rockmead Court Senior Citizens
Complex to the shops.

20/10/2014 15:37:184

134 90045028 SP_16937 DOLPHIN ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing for junction at Rialto Bridge/Herberton
Rd/Dolphin Rd.

26/02/2015 16:58:324

135 90045079 SP_17481 WINETAVERN STREET
(SC/SE)

Pedestrian Crossing at Christ Church 09/04/2015 12:10:354

136 90045107 SP_17729 SAINT MARY'S ROAD (SC) Traffic Lights (new) turning left from St. Mary's Road to St.
Agnes' Road

20/04/2015 16:47:284

137 90045108 SP_17759 BANGOR ROAD (SC) Add Pedestrian Phase at the junction 21/04/2015 15:43:494

Page 6 of 9

Page 33



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Monday 18 February 2019
190 Items

Status

138 90045183 SP_18499 KYLEMORE WAY (SC) Speed Ramps on the road. 04/06/2015 15:25:454

139 90045344 SP_19820 PARNELL ROAD (SC/SE) Pedestrian Crossing at junction with Clogher Road 25/08/2015 15:56:234

140 90045603 SP_27824 PARK WEST AVENUE (SC) Traffic Island at the roundabout, towards the Nangor
Road, on the hotel side of the road.

16/11/2015 15:43:364

141 90048109 SP_36968 LE FANU ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Colepark Drive. 10/03/2017 15:37:284

142 90048110 SP_36969 CHAPELIZOD HILL ROAD (SC) Add Pedestrian Phase at the junction of Chapelizod Hill
Road/Kylemore Road/Le Fanu Road.

10/03/2017 15:41:564

143 90048743 SP_37610 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Clearway (Rescind) review clearway wide enough to
accommodate parking without impacting
traffic flow

21/04/2017 10:02:514

144 90048926 SP_37796 SUNDRIVE ROAD (SC/SE) Broken Centre Line Reinstate the right hand turning lane at the
Sundrive Road / Kimmage Road junction
(coming from Sundrive Road).

03/05/2017 13:07:554

145 90049028 SP_37899 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

P&D Parking outside the shops on the Dolphins Barn
junction

08/05/2017 16:45:424

146 90049088 SP_37959 JAMES'S WALK (SC) Double Yellow Lines at the entrance to Nos. 64-74. 10/05/2017 10:16:544

147 90050047 SP_38933 INCHICORE ROAD (SC) P&D/Permit Park (Change
Hours)

for extension of the operational hours. 28/06/2017 15:36:524

148 90050343 SP_39238 STANNAWAY AVENUE (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the Shops at junction of 19/07/2017 14:49:074

149 7000767 REUBEN STREET (SC) Speed Ramps Speed survey for the increase in traffic
volume.

06/12/2017 11:52:164

150 7002487 HERBERTON ROAD (SC) Bus Stop Marking Bus stop marking outside 139 Herberton
Road.

19/04/2018 09:43:384

151 7003622 EARL STREET SOUTH (SC) Double Yellow Lines There are road works in operation to the rear
of the HSE premises (Earl Street South) and
they are requesting for double yellow lines
be painted in the space to the immediate
rear of the building

04/07/2018 08:12:494

152 7003817 BRABAZON STREET (SC) Speed Ramps request for speed ramps. 17/07/2018 11:49:014

153 7004332 STANNAWAY ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines (Rescind) Remove lines outside 202 Stannaway Road
(to match the continuous  white line).

16/08/2018 14:34:474

154 7004395 LA TOUCHE DRIVE (SC) Speed Ramps Speed ramps requested. 20/08/2018 18:22:244

155 7004566 CEANNT FORT (SC) Yellow Box additional yellow box at Mount Brown
entrance

29/08/2018 13:27:434

156 7004598 Q 41 18/07/2018KEEPER ROAD (SC) Double Yellow Lines on the road 30/08/2018 09:04:514

157 7004599 Q 44 SAINT MARY'S CRESCENT
(SC)

Double Yellow Lines on the road 30/08/2018 09:08:514

158 7004999 BALLYFERMOT ROAD (SC) Yellow Box On the road at the traffic lights. 20/09/2018 15:04:354

159 7005134 Q 11 SCAC 19/09/18KELLS ROAD (SC) Stop Sign Outside No. 72 28/09/2018 09:26:404

160 7005408 CAPTAIN'S DRIVE (SC) Double Yellow Lines (Extend) Along the road. 12/10/2018 13:29:244

Page 7 of 9

Page 34



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Monday 18 February 2019
190 Items

Status

161 7005553 GREENVILLE AVENUE (SC) Speed Ramps To reduce speeding by vehicles using
Greenville Ave to bypass South Circular
Road.

19/10/2018 14:51:124

162 7005554 GREENVILLE AVENUE (SC) One-Way System To alleviate speeding on this road. 19/10/2018 14:54:004

163 7005769 RING STREET (SC) Disab Park Bay Residential outside no 33 05/11/2018 12:26:554

164 7005902 STANNAWAY AVENUE (SC) Bus Stop Marking Bus cage for 3 bus lengths (approx. 36m) at
this location.

12/11/2018 16:40:404

165 7006098 CRUMLIN ROAD (SC) School Keep Clear (Rescind) outside Ard Scoil Eanna - school no longer
there

20/11/2018 09:57:224

166 7006292 Q 27 21/11/2018EARL STREET SOUTH (SC) 3.5 Tonne Limit on the road 30/11/2018 10:16:524

167 7006293 Q. 34 21/11/2018HAROLDVILLE AVENUE (SC) Traffic Calming Request for additional traffic calming 30/11/2018 10:21:594

168 7006465 UPPER CROSS ROAD (SC) Traffic Calming Traffic calming measures to address
speeding problem in this area.

07/12/2018 16:30:074

169 90045421 SP_20316 PATRICK STREET (SC/SE) Stop Sign To replace the YIELD sign at junction of
Dean Street and Patrick Street.

22/09/2015 12:08:585

170 90045511 SP_20953 ERRIGAL ROAD (SC) Pedestrian Crossing at the junction with Drimnagh road, outside
the Ronald McDonald House

21/10/2015 14:26:205

171 90045521 SP_20998 KILMAINHAM LANE (SC) No U Turn Cars coming of Chapelizod Byepass and
trying to do a U turn at the entrance to the
War Memorial Gardens

22/10/2015 15:52:365

172 90045774 SP_28935 MILITARY ROAD (SC) 3.5 Tonne Limit On Military Road at the junction of St. John's
Road West.

18/01/2016 14:41:015

173 90046801 SP_35622 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD
(SC/SE)

Bus Lane (Change of hours) For extension of the operational hours,
eastbound on the approach to Leonard’s
Corner.  

20/12/2016 11:17:535

174 90047925 SP_36783 SAINT FRANCIS' SQUARE
(SC)

P&D Parking (Change Hours) Change hours to Monday-Sunday
7.00-24.00.  BALLOT

02/03/2017 13:21:165

175 90048253 SP_37115 MOUNTSHANNON ROAD (SC) P&D/Permit Park (Change
Hours)

for extension of the operational hours.
BALLOT

21/03/2017 13:24:285

176 90049055 SP_37926 HERBERTON PARK (SC) No Left Turn no left turn from SCR onto Herberton Park,
the right turn from Herberton Rd onto
Herberton Park be made ‘except cyclists’

09/05/2017 08:54:455

177 90049904 SP_38787 MAYFIELD ROAD (SC) P&D/Permit Park (Change
Hours)

For extension of operational hours.  BALLOT 19/06/2017 15:05:175

178 90050610 SP_39508 RAINSFORD STREET (SC) Right Turn Only At junction with Crane Street 02/08/2017 15:24:405

179 90051043 SP_39944 CLONMACNOISE ROAD (SC) Yield Sign at the junction where two roads merge into
one (heading east twds the circular green),
near Nos.161/162.

28/08/2017 15:31:465

180 90051660 SP_40571 BOW LANE WEST (SC) Yield Sign On the cycle slip lane that comes from Bow
Lane West onto Thomas Street.   

03/10/2017 00:00:005

181 90051710 SP_40624 O'LEARY ROAD (SC) 3.5 Tonne Limit on the road. 04/10/2017 00:00:005

182 7000199 CRANE STREET (SC) Double Yellow Lines Clearways on both siides 24 hrs/7 days
between Thomas Street and Rainsford
Street.

06/11/2017 14:50:525

Page 8 of 9

Page 35



Item Enquiry SP Ref Site Subject Description Logged

Status Report Monday 18 February 2019
190 Items

Status

183 7000683 TURVEY AVENUE (SC) Stop Sign on Turvey Avenue at the junction of Emmet
Road.

30/11/2017 09:14:215

184 7001091 HERBERTON PARK (SC) P&D/Permit Parking Introduction of a Scheme.   BALLOT 05/01/2018 16:34:515

185 7001522 JAMES'S STREET (SC) Clearway (Amend Hours) Extend Clearway hours on section between
the end of the bus lane and the Luas Tracks.

31/01/2018 14:34:315

186 7001695 CRANE STREET (SC) 3.5 Tonne Limit Buses/truck will not be able to access
Thomas Street via Crane Street.

14/02/2018 12:26:295

187 7002981 THOMAS COURT (SC) Yield Sign At junction 21/05/2018 16:31:455

188 7004064 CEANNT FORT (SC) Yellow Box (Extend) Widen box on Mount Brown at exit from
Ceannt Fort  to increase effectiveness.

31/07/2018 17:21:455

189 7004746 KELLS ROAD (SC) Stop Sign Blindpost for children with cars coming
around the corner.

06/09/2018 14:37:375

190 7006285 ORWELL ROAD (SE) Double Yellow Lines Double yellow lines outside driveway of Ann
Mount, leading up Orwell road towards
Orwell park for 2 feet.

29/11/2018 15:38:09A

Page 9 of 9

Page 36



Kilmainham Mill

P
age 37



December 10th 2018

Dublin City Council Takes Ownership

P
age 38



Steering Group in place 
3 project working group

 Donncha O’Dulaing – Senior Executive Officer

 Darragh Cunningham – Project Manager (Started 21/01/19)

 Bruce Phillips – South Central Area Manager

 Jackie O’Reilly – CRES Dept Administrative Officer

 Mary McDonald – Conservation section

 Iseult Byrne – CEO Dublin Culture Connects / Henrietta St.

 Steven O’Gara – Local Enterprise Office

P
age 39



P
age 40



Initial Issues faced

 Health and Safety – Electrical / General.

 Security – 24/7 static security –Moving to Monitored alarm.

 Buddleia Removal.

 Japanese Knotweed.

 Roof Water Pooling – Clearing of drains and water.

 Mains Water – Leak discovered in main building.

 Gates – New hinges made.

 Foliage clearance.

P
age 41



P
age 42



Step 2: Site Safety Foliage Clearance
Basic enabling works to allow safe access around the building

P
age 43



P
age 44



Historical Structures Fund (HSF) 

Safeguarding the past and the future
 DCC has applied for €200,000 as part of a €551,000 initial investment.

 Emergency stabilisation works to include:

 Propping of floors.

 Re-slating of roofs (using reclaimed roof tiles).

 Management of machinery

 Removal of debris and guano.

 Mesh to cover windows.

 Removal of Ivy from outer building.

 Address drainage issues.

Approximate scale
0m                 5m                   10m               15m

Building 01a - long section

Key to access

No access, unstable structure over or 
under foot

Proceed with caution -possible gaps 
in flooring or elements of falling 
finishes over

Deemed stable but proceed only with 
full PPE

Back propping to be introduced centre points under beams between existing 
columns.  ie two sets of props as shown thus
Assume Peri props or similar required https://www.peri.com/en
propping height ground floor approx 3.4m upper floors typically 2.6m or less. 
Propping at top floor also if deemed necessary to provide security to roof over 
in temporary condition

Note this coding will 
change once 
propping and initial 
clear out has taken 
place

Walkways installed to span between propped beams to give access for inspection to full length of 
building as shown in cross-section formed of RMD kwikform walkways or else 4no 225x75 timbers 
at 400 cc with 1200mm wide 8mm plywood deck screw fixed to top of timbers and timber handrail 
to both sides

cross- section

P
age 45



Expert Help:
The Dream Team

 Howley Hayes Architects 

 Lisa Eddin – Cora structural Engineers

 Austin Reddy Quantity Surveyors

 Franc Myles – Archaeologist

 MCD Landscapes

P
age 46



Stakeholder Engagement & 

Communications Strategy

 Save Kilmainham Mill Campaign – 21/02/19

 Residents Association – 05/03/19

 South Central Area Committee 20/03/19

 Kilmainham Inchicore Network 25/03/19

 Bruce Phillips & Aoife Hannan

 Stakeholder Analysis

 Communications strategy devised 

P
age 47



Future Usage

P
age 48



 
 
 South Central Area Office, 
 Eblana House, 

 Marrowbone Lane, 
 Dublin 8. 
 
  

      
       
 
 
The Chairperson and Members  
South Central Area Committee. 
 

 

 
Naming and Numbering Proposal for a new mixed use development  

(planning ref. 3472/18) on a site at: 
88-90 Drimnagh Road, Drimnagh, Dublin 12. 

 

 
 
 
This naming and numbering proposal refers to a mixed use development comprising 25 
units at 88-90 Drimnagh Road, Drimnagh, Dublin 12, as indicated on the attached site 
location map. 
 
The naming and numbering proposed for this development is: 
 
1 - 25 Slievebloom Court (1 - 25 Cuirt Shliabh Bladhma) 

 
The Heritage Officer and Environment & Transportation Department. have deemed the 
proposed name and numbering as appropriate for this development. 
 
The naming and numbering; 1 - 25 Slievebloom Court (1 - 25 Cuirt Shliabh Bladhma) is 
considered suitable and is recommended for adoption. 
 
  
 
 
 
Mary Taylor 
_____________ 

Area Manager 

Page 49





SITE LOCATION

P
age 51





Library Events for February 2019 – South Central Area 

1 

 

 

Ballyfermot Library Events for _March__ 2019 

Non Regular or Regular 
Events 

Event Category Event Title Suitable Audience Date and Time 

Regular Exhibition 1916 Street Banners & Art 
Exhibition 

All  Ongoing 

Regular Exhibition Bio-Diversity  All Ongoing 

Non- Regular Exhibition Roger Casement in Peru (some 
text in Spanish only) 

All  Month of March 

Non- Regular Exhibition  Matt Talbot trust exhibition All  Month of March 

Non- Regular Exhibition Primary Schools exhibition of 
literacy work for World Book Day 

All  One week from 4
th
  

Non- Regular Reading event ‘Horrid Henry’ event for children 
from St Ultan’s School 

Selected children  Friday 1
st
 March 

Non- Regular Disability 
awareness 

Ballyfermot Partnership Disability 
access group meeting  

Closed Friday 1
st
 12.30pm- 

2.00pm 

Non- Regular Cultural Launch of Trad Hub – launch of 
Saturday  traditional music drop 
in sessions  

All Sat 2
nd

 March 
11.00am – 1.00pm 

Non-Regular Schools Various classes from local 
primary schools coming to view 
the literacy exhibition 

Local school 
children 

Mornings Mon – Wed 
10.00am – 12.00pm 

Non-Regular Cultural Traditional music performance 
with musicians Derek Copley and 
Liam Kennedy 

All Tuesday 5
th
 12.30pm- 

2.00pm 

Non – Regular Speech Language 
therapy 

WRAP workshop  Tuesday 5
th
  11.00am- 

1.30pm 

Non- Regular Adult education BALT History lecture with Cathy 
Scuffil “New Social movements” 

 Wednesdays 6
th
 ,13

th
 , 

20
th
 10.15am – 

12.15pm 

Non- Regular Health Expert Diabetes Programme  All  Wednesdays 2.30pm–
5.00pm 
(for 6 weeks –started 
30

th
 Jan) 

Non- Regular Children’s Roald Dahl event Selected class Wednesday 6
th
 

10.00am – 12.00pm 

Non- Regular Literacy Open Day for primary school 
classes that participated in 
Schools Literacy Display 

School children Thursday 7
th
 10.00am 

– 12.30pm 

Non- Regular World Book Day World Book Day event – dress 
up as favourite book character 

Children Thursday 7
th
 @ 6pm 

Page 53



Library Events for February 2019 – South Central Area 

2 

 

Non Regular or Regular 
Events 

Event Category Event Title Suitable Audience Date and Time 

Non- Regular  International Women’s Day event   Friday 8
th
  

Non –Regular Health PHEW Workshop with Antje Von 
der Schulenburg,  Dietician 

All Mondays:  4
th
 ,11

th
, 

18
th
, - 10.00am – 

1.00pm 
 

Non-Regular Irish Language Basic Irish Language Course 
with Gael Culture 

All Tuesdays for 5 weeks 
starting 12

th
  

Non- Regular Computer classes Getting Ireland online – Basic PC 
class 

All 4 days – 2.00pm–
4.30pm 19

th
 – 22

nd
  

Non-Regular Story telling / 
Reading 

Story time celebration for St. 
Raphael’s 

St Raphael’s pre-
school & parents 

Wednesday 13
th
 

10.30am – 11.30am 

Non- Regular Youth Service Ballyfermot Youth Service 
Training Programme 

50 members of 
Ballyfermot Youth 
Service 

Tuesday 26
th
 and Wed 

27
th
 10.00am – 

5.00pm 

Non- Regular Lecture Economics lecture for members 
of BALT 

Members of BALT Wednesday 27
th
 

10.15am – 12.15pm  

Regular Story telling Bi-Lingual (Irish & English) 
storytelling with Grace Corrigan 

All toddlers Fridays 11.30am- 
12.15pm  

Regular  Adult Literacy BALT Adults Wednesdays 10.00am 
– 12.30pm  
 

Regular Computer Class WALK computer classes Closed to 
members of WALK 

Mondays & 
Wednesdays 2pm – 
4pm 
 

Regular Toddler Group ‘Baby Bounce’ Story telling for 
toddlers with Grace Corrigan 

Children  Tuesdays @ 11am – 
starting back on 
Tuesday 8

th
 Jan. 

 

Regular Workshop “Smashing Barriers” 

Ballyfermot/Chapelizod  

Closed Thursdays   

10.30am- 1.00pm 

Regular Meeting Ballyfermot Heritage Group All  Thursday 2nd @ 

7.00pm 

Regular Meeting COPD info session People suffering 

from COPD 

Last Thursday of 

month  

2.00pm – 4.00pm 

Regular Facilitated Group Monday Afternoon Book Club  Adult 2
nd

  Monday of 

month @ 2.30pm 

 

Regular Facilitated 

Groups or 

Organisations 

Creative Writers Group Adult 1
st
 &  3

rd
  

Wednesdays  at 

6.00pm  

Page 54



Library Events for February 2019 – South Central Area 

3 

 

Dolphin’s Barn 

 

Regular or Non 

Regular 

Type of Event Event Title Audience Date and Time 

Regular Book Club Grand Canal Book Club Adult 2
nd

 Monday of the month at 
7pm 

Regular Book Club Beyond the Pale Adult  External Book Club  

Regular Book Club Margaret Mason Adult External Book Club 

Regular Book Club Dolphins Barn Book 
Club 

Adult Last Thursday of the month 
at 11am 

Regular Book Club Afternoon Book Club Adult 3
rd

 Wednesday of the 
month  

Regular Book Club Page Turners Adult External Book Club – Meets 
every 6 weeks 

Regular  Book Display True Crime Adult  Month of March   

Regular  Workshop Parent and Toddler 
Group with DSCP 

Children/Parents 

 

Month of March Every 
Tuesday 10.30 -12.00 

Regular  Creative Writing 
Group  

Meeting 1
st
 Wednesday 

of the Month  
Adult Wednesday 5

th
 March 2019 

Regular  Creative Writing 
Group  

Meeting 3
rd

 Wednesday 
off the Month  

Adult  Wednesday 19
th
 March 

2019 

Non Regular Book club “language Adventures” 
Multicultural Storytelling 
Session  - Lithunian  

 Saturday 23
rd

 March 10.30  

Non Regular 

 

Adult Education 
Service Crumlin 
College (Gwen 
Redmond facilitator)   

Short Introduction to 
Irish History  

(session one of four) 

Adult  Tuesday 12
th
 March 

(morning)  
Closed Event 

Non regular  Adult Education 
Service Crumlin 
College (Gwen 
Redmond facilitator 

Short Introduction to 
Irish History  

(session two of four) 

Adult  Tuesday 19
th
 March 2019 

(morning) 
Closed Event  

Non Regular  Adult Education 
Service Crumlin 
College (Gwen 
Redmond facilitator 

Short Introduction to 
Irish History  

(Session three of four) 

Adult  Tuesday 26
th
 March 2019 

(morning) 
Closed event  

Page 55



Library Events for February 2019 – South Central Area 

4 

 

Inchicore Library 

 

Type of 
Event 

Event Title Adult / Child / 
Family 

Date and Time 

Book 
Display 

City Wide Reading Children January – March 
 

Book 
Display 

Dublin Literary Award 2019 Adult Until June 
 

Exhibition Salt Queen of Senegal  February-March 
 

Exhibition Display of Great Book of Kilmainham Family  ongoing 
 

REGULAR EVENTS 

Type of Event Event Title Date and Time 

Faciliated Group 
 

Knitting Circle Thursdays from 3 – 4pm 

Book Club The Monday Book Club reading ‘The 
Heart of  a Woman’ by Maya Angelou  

First Monday of Month 4
th
 March @ 

6.30pm 

Miscellaneous Film Showing Wed 14
th
 March @ 6pm sharp 

Book Club 
 

Wednesday Book Club reading  Last Wednesday of Month 27
th
  March 

@ 6.30pm 

Book Display Healthy Ireland Ongoing 
 

Book Display New Book Display Ongoing 
 

Miscellaneous Notice BoardDisplay Ongoing 
 

 

Children & Family 

Samples of Type of Event: 

Book Display /Exhibition / Book Clubs /  Lectures / Workshops / Facilitated 

Groups or Organisations / Performing Arts  / Conversation Exchanges/ 

Miscellaneous 

Type of Event Event Title Date and Time 

Workshop Colouring During the month 
 

Workshop 
 

Story Time  Thurs at 11.30am – 12.00pm 

Book Display New Books Ongoing 
 

Miscellaneous Children’s Art Competition Display Ongoing 
 

 

Page 56



Library Events for February 2019 – South Central Area 

5 

 

Walkinstown Library 

 

Non Regular 
or Regular 

Events 

Event Category Event Title Audience Date and Time 

Non Regular Crumlin Walkinstown 
Local Forum 

Community Groups Open 
Day. 
The library are taking a stand 
at this event which will be 
held in Scoil Una Naofa 

Adult  

Non Regular Seachtain na Gaeilge 
Event 
 

Scannáin do Pháistí le linn 
Sheachtain na Gaeilge 

Children 4
th
, 11

th
 and 20

th
 March 

@3.30pm 

Non Regular Adult Education Communiversity Adult Commenced 31
st
 Jan for 

10 weeks 

Non Regular Adult Education Adult Learners Group- Follow 
on course for those people 
who have completed the 
Communiversity course in 
the library 

Adult Commences March 14
th
 for 

5 weeks 

Non Regular Tovertafel for people with 
mid/late dementia 
(interactive games 
stimulating both physical 
and cognitive activity and 
encouraging social 
interaction) 
 

Training for residents of St 
Michaels House 

Adult 1
st
 March @ 11.30am 

 Facilitated Group Young Adult Book Club Young 
Adult 

2
nd

 Monday of the month 
5pm 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

Knitting Circle Adult Wednesday’s 6pm-8pm 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

GIY(Grow-it-yourself) Adult 3
rd

 Monday of the month 
from 6.30pm-7.45 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

Walkinstown Readers’ Group Adult 2
nd

 Thurs. @ 3.30pm 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

Crochet Group  Adult Saturdays @11am 
 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

Local History Group Adult Second Wednesday of 
every month @ 6.30pm 

Regular Conversation 
Exchange 

Ciorcal Comhra (Irish 
language exchange) 

Adult  Mondays 6pm-7pm 

Regular Mother and Toddler 
Group 

 Mother and toddler group Children  Tuesdays 11am-12.30pm 

Regular Book Club  Children’s Book Club Children 4th Monday of the month 
@ 4pm 

 

Page 57





SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

DUBLIN CITY SPORT & WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP REPORT  

MARCH 2019 

 

1.  DCSWP HIGHLIGHT PROGRAMMES/EVENTS MARCH - APRIL 2019.  

 

THE LORD MAYOR’S 5 ALIVE CHALLENGE 2019 

The Lord Mayor’s 5 Alive concludes on 30
th
 March with the BHAA Dublin City Council 4-mile race on Saturday 30

th
 March.  The 5 Alive challenge is a 

partnership programme between Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership and the Lord Mayor’s Office. 
The Challenge is now in its 7th year and has encouraged hundreds of people to take up regular exercise over the past 6 years. 

 
Last year the initiative went back to its roots and targeted people who were interested in taking up jogging or novice joggers who required some 
encouragement to sustain progress. The focus on encouraging new and novice joggers to sign up to the challenge continued in 2019. In 2018 the challenge 
also introduced mentors to accompany slower joggers and walkers and encourage them along each route.  The mentoring aspect of the challenge also 
continues with 30 mentors appointed to support participants in the 2019 challenge. Each mentor has completed the 5 Alive challenge in previous years.  Over 
400 people registered to participate in this year’s challenge which commenced in the Phoenix Park on New Year’s Day.   
 
 In the event that a participant is unable to complete the 5 races they have the opportunity to substitute a race for one of the city’s Parkruns.  Dublin hosts free 
5k Parkrun in 5 locations across the city every Saturday morning.  Details on times and locations can be found at www.parkrun.ie. Details of the final 2019 5 
Alive races are outlined below; 

 

 MSB St. Patrick's Day Festival 5k Race and Family Fun Run. This race commences at Stephen’s Green at 12 noon on Monday 18
th
 March.   

 

 BHAA Dublin City Council 4 mile race. This race takes place in St. Anne’s Park, Raheny at 11am on Saturday 30
th
 March.  

 
 
CHANGE FOR LIFE  2019 - REVIEW                                                                                                                                             

Change for Life is an 8 weeks Core programme running annually since 2013.  The programme aims to improve the health of local communities by supporting 
people to become more physically active on a regular basis and adopt a healthier diet.  The programme was rolled out in conjunction with RTE’s Operation 
Transformation in 15 locations across the city with over 1000 participants.  Change for Life culminated with an awards and showcase event in the Round 
Room, Mansion House to celebrate the participants’ successes on Friday 15

th
 March 2019.   

P
age 59

http://www.parkrun.ie/
https://www.facebook.com/msbpatricks5k/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/BHAA-375711882376/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/DublinCityCouncil/?fref=mentions


 
 

 
 The following Change for Life programme will continue in the area over the next period;  

 Programmed: Change for Life - Fatima 
Dates/Times: Mondays 10-11am/ Mondays 6-7pm/Tuesdays 5.30-6.30pm/Wednesdays 6-7pm/Thursdays 12-1pm/Thursdays 6-7pm   
Location: Fatima F2 Centre 
Participants: Mixed 18+ years.   

Partners: Fatima Groups United 

 

 

 

2. DCSWP CORE PROGRAMMES MARCH - APRIL 2019.  

Below are highlights of ongoing core programmes and events ongoing in the area over the next period. For full details of programmes please contact the 

DCSWP Office or local Sport Officers. Contact details are listed at the end of the report.  

 

CHAMPIONS (CORE)                                    Adults With Physical & |Intellectual Disabilities   

The Champions Programme is targeted at adults with intellectual disabilities. The following Champions programme is being delivered over the next period in 

partnership with St. John of God’s;  

 Programme: St. John of God’s Champions Programme 
Date/Times: Ongoing. Mondays 11am-12.30pm 
Location: TBC 
Participants: Mixed 18 + years 
 

 
 

 

P
age 60



FIT 4 CLASS (CORE)                                          Primary School Children 

In partnership with Athletics Ireland, DCSWP ensures each primary school receives a free multi-sports kit and games book suitable for delivering a wide 
range of fun physical activity sessions and games.   
 

 The following Fit 4 Class school programmes are delivered on an ongoing basis in schools in the South Central Area over the period;  
 

 Programme: Dance Yoga 
Date/Times: Ongoing. Monday’s 11.30am – 12.30/Wednesdays 11.30am – 12.30pm 
Location: Our Lady of Mercy Secondary School, Drimnagh 
Participants: Female – all ages.   

 

 Programme: School Athletics Sports Hall 
Date/Times: Ongoing. Tuesdays 10.30am – 12 noon 
Location: Loreto Primary School, Crumlin 
Participants: Mixed 

   

 Programme: School Athletics Sports Hall 
Date/Times: Ongoing. Tuesdays 2.30pm – 4pm 
Location: Scoil Isogain, Crumlin 
Participants: Mixed 

 

 Programme: School Athletics Sports Hall 
Date/Times: Ongoing. Tuesdays 12.30pm – 2pm 
Location: St. Patrick’s Choir School, Dublin 8 
Participants: Mixed 
 

 Programme: Triathlon Training 
Date/Times:  Thursdays. Time TBC 
Location: St. Patrick’s Choir School, Dublin 8 
Participants: Mixed 

 

 

P
age 61



 

FOREVER FIT  (CORE)                                                           Older Adults   

The Forever Fit programme is aimed at older adults and will focus on activities to improve balance, co-ordination and fall prevention. Activities include chair 

aerobics, tai chi and line dancing.  

 The following Older Adults multi-sport programmes will be delivered in the South Central Area during the next period; 

 Programme: Older Adults Aerobics 
Date/Times: Ongoing. Mondays 2pm-3pm 
Location: Stanaway Court, Crumlin  
Participants: Mixed Older Adults  
 

 Programme: Older Adults Bowls Programme 
Date/Times: Ongoing. Tuesdays 1pm – 3pm 
Location: St. Catherine’s Sports Centre  
Participants: Males age 55+  

 

 Programme: Older Adults Bowls Programme 
Date/Times: Ongoing. Fridays 11am– 1pm 
Location: Donore Centre, D8 
Participants: Mixed age 55+  

 

 Programme: Older Adults Chair Aerobics 
Date/Times: Ongoing. Thursdays 10.30am – 11.30am 
Location: Donore Centre, D 8 
Participants: Males age 55+  

 Partners: Men’s Shed, D8 

 

GAGA  (CORE)                                                                                  Teenage Girls  __________ 

The GAGA programme is aimed at teenage girls and is run in conjunction with local youth services and schools. Wide varieties of activities are delivered as 

part of the programme including dance-fit, fencing, yoga, boot-camp and adventure activities. Activities take place at various venues.  

P
age 62



 The following GAGA programme will be delivered in the South Central Area during the next period; 

 Programme: Kick Start 1 – Foundation Course for Females 
Date/Times:  Saturday 14

th
 April 9am – 5pm 

Location: TBC 
Participants:  Female 16 + years 

Partners: FAI 

 

GET DUBLIN WALKING (CORE)                                                          Underactive Adults   

DCSWP Sport Officers, in partnership with the HSE and the DCC Community Section deliver a number of walking group programmes across the city under 

the banner of ‘Get Dublin Walking’. The aim of the programme is to encourage underactive adults to increase their levels of activity;    

 The following Get Dublin Walking Community Walks and Irish Heart Foundations Walking Leaders Courses will take place in the South Central Area 

during the next period; 

 Programme: Ballyfermot Walkers and Talkers - Community Walks   
Dates/Times: Mondays and Wednesdays. Time TBC 
Participants: 18 + years 

 

 Programme: Kylemore Community Training Centre Walking Group 
Dates/Times: Fridays 9am 
Location: Kylemore Community Training Centre 

Participants: Mixed 16 – 24 years 

Partners:   Local ETB 

 

 Programme: IHF Walking Leaders Level 2 Course 
Dates/Times: TBC 
Location: TBC 

Participants: Mixed age 18+ 

 

 

 

 

P
age 63



 Programme: Introductory Session on Nordic Walking IHF Programme 
Dates/Times: Monday 25

th
 March 7pm – 9pm 

Location: TBC 

Participants: Mixed age 18+ 

 

 Programme: Get Dublin Walking – Brickfield Park 
Dates/Times: Saturdays 9.30am – 12 noon 
Location: Brickfield Park, Drimnagh 

Participants: Mixed Adults age 18+ 

 

 

THRIVE (CORE)                                                                    Adults With Mental Health Difficulties   

 Thrive is a referral programme geared towards engaging people with mental health difficulties. This can range from people who suffer with anxiety or 
depression to people who may have suffered an acquired brain injury and need assistance in re-integrating into their communities from a personal 
independence, social & general wellbeing viewpoint. Below are details of a Thrive Programme currently being delivered in the area;  

 

 Programme: Thrive 
Dates/Times: Mondays 7pm -9m  
Location:  Donore Avenue 
Participants: Mixed 55+ 
Partners: Donore Community Centre 

 

 

YOUTH FIT (CORE)                                          Youth at Risk (10 - 21 years) 

 The following Youth Fit Introduction to Paddling programme will be delivered over the next period in partnership with Ballyfermot Youth Services. The 

programme will commence with a CPR Introductory Course on Wednesday 20
th
 April; 

 Programme: ‘Paddles Up’ Introduction to Paddling Programme 
Dates/Times: Wednesdays mornings from 20

th
 March 

Location:  Ballyfermot Youth Services Adventure Centre 
Participants:  Females 13-19 

P
age 64



 

 The following Youth Fit Team Building Session will be delivered for the Order of Malta Cadets team in Jump Zone on Sunday 28
th
 April;   

 Programme: Order of Malta Cadets Team Building Session 
Dates/Times: Sunday 28

th
 April 

Participants:  Mixed 10 – 16 years 
 

3. DCSWP GENERAL PROGRAMMES MARCH – APRIL 2019.  

SAFEGUARDING 

 Programme: Safeguarding 1, 2 & 3 
Dates/Times: Wednesday 20

th
 March (level 1)/Saturday 30

th
 March (levels 2 &3) 

Location: TBC 
   Participants: Mixed Adults age 18+ 
   
 

FOOTBALL 
 

 Programme: Drop-in soccer programme 
Dates/Times: Ongoing. Thursdays 5-6pm 
Location: Clogher Rd Main Hall, Crumlin 

   Participants: Teenage Boys 

  Partners: Brú Youth Group, Crumlin  

 

ROWING 
 

 Programme: Drop -In Rowing Programme  
Dates/Times: Ongoing. Tuesdays 11am/Fridays 1pm 
Location: Municipal Rowing Centre, Islandbridge 

   Participants: Mixed  

   

 

 

 

P
age 65



4. DCSWP CO-FUNDED PROGRAMMES MARCH – APRIL 2019 
 

BOXING DEVELOPMENT OFFICER UPDATE 

 

 The Startbox Initiative, a partnership between the IABA and Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership, represents an ideal way for young people (10 – 17 
years) to first engage with amateur boxing, Ireland’s most successful Olympic sport. It is delivered by our 5 dedicated IABA/DCSWP Development Officers via 
local schools (primary & TY level) in communities across the Dublin City area. Approximately 2,000 young people take part each year. 
 
The Programme is structured into Bronze (non- contact), Silver and Gold phases. The first phase focuses on general strength & fitness, method and 
technique. The Silver Programme consists of higher intensity sessions & limited contact and the Gold phase takes it on to another level again. The DCSWP 
Boxing Rugby Development Officer will be liaising with local schools in the South Central area during the next period.  

 
 
 
CRICKET DEVELOPMENT OFFICER UPDATE 
 

 Cricket Development sessions will be delivered in the following schools in the area during this period:  

 Drimnagh Castle BNS, Drimnagh - Wednesdays 11am-12.30pm 

 

 Scoil Úna Naofa, Crumlin - Wednesdays 1pm-2.30pm 

 The annual Dublin City U12, U14 and U17 Girl’s Easter Camps will take place at St. Columbus College from 10am-17.30pm from the 15
th
-18

th
 April 

Participants attending from the South Central area will be mainly from the Drimnagh area. 
 
 
 
FOOTBALL DEVELOPMENT OFFICER UPDATE 
 
For details of Football events/programmes/initiatives in the South Central Area please contact the local Football Development Officers. Contact details are 
listed below.  
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 66



ROWING DEVELOPMENT OFFICER UPDATE 

Get Going…Get Rowing  

 Having spent the winter months learning rowing techniques on indoor machines, rowing students are now ready to apply their skills in the water.   

Water taster sessions will be delivered from March 11th to mid-May in Neptune Rowing Club in Islandbridge. 39 sessions are planned with 

participants from 22 schools.  The indoor rowing programme will continue to be delivered in schools based in Cabra, Ballyfermot, Coolock and 

Beaumont.   

 Rowing students continue to virtually row around the world as part of the Student World Indoor Rowing Challenge and are currently making their way 

through Addis Ababa.  

 Preparations have commenced for the Rowing ‘Splash and Dash’ event on May 9
th
 in Grand Canal Dock. 

 Rowing Ireland activities can be tracked on Twitter, Instagram and Facebook. 

 
 
RUGBY DEVELOPMENT OFFICER UPDATE 
 
For details of Rugby events/programmes/initiatives in the South Central Area please contact the local Rugby Development Officer. Contact details are listed 
below.  
 
 
Contact details  
Shauna McIntyre, DCSWP Manager: shauna.mcintyre@dublin@dublincity.ie 
Aideen O’Connor, DCSWP Programmes & Services Development Manager: aideen.oconnor@dublin@dublincity.ie  
Alan Morrin, Senior Staff Officer, DCSWP: alan.morrin@dublincity.ie  
Martin McDonagh, Manager, Sports & Fitness Ballyfermot & Inchicore Sports Centre: martin.mcdonagh@dublincity.ie  
Cormac Healy, Manager, St. Catherine’s Sports Centre & Clogher Road Sports Centre: cormac.healy@dublincity.ie  
Igor Khmil, Sports Officer: igor.khmil@dublincity.ie  
Catherine Flood, Sports Officer: catherine.flood@dublincity.ie  
Will Morris, Sports Officer: william.morris@dublincity.ie  
Sharon Kelly, Sport Officer: sharon.kelly@dublincity.ie  
Gareth Herbert, Sport Officer: gareth.herbert@dublincity.ie  
Michael Moore, Soccer: michael.moore@fai.ie  
Marc Kenny, Soccer: marc.kenny@fai.ie  
David Rake, Soccer: david.rake@fai.ie  
Ed Griffin, Boxing: shandygriffin@hotmail.com  

P
age 67

mailto:shauna.mcintyre@dublin@dublincity.ie
mailto:aideen.oconnor@dublin@dublincity.ie
mailto:alan.morrin@dublincity.ie
mailto:martin.mcdonagh@dublincity.ie
mailto:cormac.healy@dublincity.ie
mailto:igor.khmil@dublincity.ie
mailto:catherine.flood@dublincity.ie
mailto:william.morris@dublincity.ie
mailto:sharon.kelly@dublincity.ie
mailto:gareth.herbert@dublincity.ie
mailto:michael.moore@fai.ie
mailto:marc.kenny@fai.ie
mailto:david.rake@fai.ie
mailto:shandygriffin@hotmail.com


Fintan McAllister, Cricket: fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie  
Gareth Murray, Rugby: gareth.murray@leinsterrugby.ie  
 

Report by 

Dee O’Boyle  

Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership: dee.oboyle@dublincity.ie 

 

  

 

P
age 68

mailto:fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
mailto:gareth.murray@leinsterrugby.ie
mailto:dee.oboyle@dublincity.ie


 
Development Department, 

Civic Offices. 
 

12th March 2019 
 

 
To: The Chairman and Members of  

South Central Area Committee 
 
 

Meeting: 20th March 2019 

 
 

 
With reference to the proposed grant of a further licence for the use of part of the 
premises at Longmeadows Pitch & Putt Club, Sarsfield Road, Ballyfermot, Dublin 
10.  
 

 
By way of Agreement dated 18th October 2011 part of the premises at Longmeadows 
Pitch & Putt Club, Sarsfield Road, Dublin 10 which said part is more particularly shown 
outlined red and coloured pink on Map Index No.SM-2019-0188 was let by Dublin City 
Council under licence to Longmeadows Ballyfermot Pitch & Putt Company Limited for a 
period of 11 months from 1st July 2011 and subject to a licence fee of €100 (one hundred 
euro).  
 
This licence was subsequently renewed and the most recent licence agreement expired 
on 30th November 2017 and the licensee has been overholding under same. The 
Council’s Parks and Landscape Services Division of the Community, Recreation and 
Amenity Department have confirmed that they have no objection to the granting of a 
further licence on similar terms and conditions. 
 
Accordingly, it is now proposed to grant a 3 year licence for use of part of the premises at 
Longmeadows Pitch & Putt Club, Sarsfield Road, Dublin 10 to Longmeadows Ballyfermot 
Pitch & Putt Ballyfermot Company Limited subject to the following terms and conditions: 

 
1. The licence shall be for a further period of 3 years commencing on 1st December 

2017.  
 

2. The licence fee shall be €100.00 (one hundred euro) per annum. 
 

3. That the licensee shall be required to sign a Deed of Renunciation. 
 

4. The premises which is more particularly shown outlined red and coloured pink on 
Map Index No. SM-2019-0188 shall be open solely for use in connection with the 
activities of a pitch & putt club at a minimum of between the hours of 7.30am and 
one hour before dusk. 
 

5. The licensee shall be liable for all outgoings associated with that part of the 
building used by the licensee. 
 

6. The licensee shall at all times adequately secure the building against entry by 
unauthorised persons or damage by third parties and maintain a safe and secure 
environment for all users of the facility including the taking of all reasonable steps 

Page 69



to prevent undesirable persons gaining access at any time which shall include the 
locking of all doors, windows and all other apertures of whatsoever nature located 
within the licenced area. 
 

7. Dublin City Council will arrange a fire and security maintenance and monitoring 
contract.  The licencee will pay 50% of the call out charge in relation to key holding 
and alarm response service. 
 

8. The licence shall be non-transferable. 
 

9. The licensee shall provide and maintain services within the pavilion such as 
catering facilities and shop as agreed with Dublin City Council and shall provide 
club hire as required. 
 

10. There shall be a prohibition on the sale or consumption of intoxicating liquor on the 
premises except with the written consent in advance of the licensor, along with the 
licensee obtaining a Court order and complying with all statutory requirements in 
this regard. 
 

11. The licensee acknowledges and agrees that the building is a no smoking area in 
its entirety. 
 

12. The licensee to inspect on a regular basis the state of repair and condition of the 
unit and to immediately notify same to Council.  The cost of repairs will be incurred 
by the Council unless caused by the negligence of licensee or invitee, employee 
etc.  The licensee shall keep the premises in good condition during the term of the 
licence and shall not remove or permit the removal of the fixtures, fittings and 
appliances from the building. 
 

13. The licensee shall operate and run the facility on behalf of Dublin City Council in 
accordance with the principles of good business management and further, with a 
view to maximising the potential of the Pitch & Putt Club as a sports facility. 
 

14. The licensee shall prepare and produce financial accounts and other relevant 
information in accordance with Dublin City Council’s requirements. 
 

15. The licensee shall take out and produce Public Liability Insurance in the sum of 
€6,500,000 (six million five hundred thousand euro) and Employer’s Liability 
Insurance in the amount of €13,000,000 (thirteen million euro) for any one incident 
with a recognised Insurance Company with offices in the State and the policy shall 
indemnify the Council against any liability as owner of the premises. 
 

16. The licensor shall insure the building on its block policy of insurance for all its 
buildings in respect of fire, damage, damage through storm or tempest in 
accordance with the normal fire insurance policy.  The licensee shall be 
responsible for insuring its' own contents. 
 

17. The licensee shall not erect or exhibit any sign, board, placard, poster or 
advertising matter or any flag or banner on or outside the facility without first 
obtaining the written consent of the licensor.   
 

18. The licensee shall be responsible for keeping the immediate environs of the 
licensed part of the building and the Pitch and Putt course clear of litter.  
 

19. This licence does not confer any rights under Landlord and Tenant Law and may 
be terminated by the Dublin City Council, giving two months notice, for any breach 

Page 70



of the conditions of the licence and such other terms regarding termination as 
determined by the Law Agent.   
 

20. Each party shall be responsible for their own legal fees in the transaction. 
 

21. If the Company formally disbands the facility will be passed back free of charge to 
Dublin City Council. 
 

22. On termination of the licence the licensee shall at their own expense remove all 
materials not belonging to Dublin City Council and shall leave the property clean 
and cleared to the satisfaction of the Council.  
 

23. The licensee shall organise the order of play on the course and generally ensure 
appropriate behaviour of those using the course and pavilion.  The licensee shall 
facilitate individual and group pre-booking. The licensee shall undertake day-to-
day housekeeping such as lighting, heating, cleaning and keeping in good order 
the facilities in and around the pavilion including the supply of cleaning materials, 
towels, toilet rolls etc. 
 

24. The licensee shall provide reliable, experienced and trained personnel at all times 
to deliver the required level of service. 
 

25. During the term and at all times, the licensee to observe and comply in all respects 
with the provisions and requirements of any and every enactment, regulation, 
statutory order, statutory instrument, government, departmental, EU, Local 
Authority Order, regulation or directive, including the recommendations and 
regulations of the Fire Authority, Health & Safety Authority, Office of Minister of 
Children and any recommendations and regulations as laid down from time to time 
by any appropriate body or authority and to indemnify the City Council at all times 
against all proceedings, actions, costs, charges, claims, expenses, damages and 
liabilities losses and demands arising from any breach of this Clause.  
 

26. Dublin City Council reserves the right to enter the building and to allow other users 
to access to the Building from time to time following consultation with the licensee. 
 

27. The licensee shall facilitate Dublin City Council, its servants and agents, 
accompanied by all necessary equipment, to enter the Licensed area giving at 
least two weeks notice in writing of its intention, (except in emergency situations) 
without liability to compensate the licensee for any loss, damage or inconvenience, 
and do all acts necessary for the purpose of carrying out such works to the 
premises which the Council may think fit and on demand forthwith to remove all 
such articles out of the premises as may be indicated by the Council as requiring 
removal (vacating the space completely if necessary) in order to enable such 
works to be more conveniently carried out. 
 

28. The licence will be subject to any other terms and conditions deemed appropriate 
by Dublin City Council’s Law Agent. 

 
 
P. Clegg 
_________________ 
Executive Manager 
 

Page 71





Page 73





DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

20th February 2019 
 
Q1 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to arrange for dog poo bins at the entrances to (details 
supplied). Dog owners leaving the park are placing bags of dog poo at the wall as 
they leave. Dog poo bins would address this problem. 

 
Reply 
The Waste Management Department does not recommend the installation of further 
dog fouling bins in any locations and recommends the use of standard litter bins for 
the disposal of dog litter and general litter.  It is not recommended to install bins at 
the suggested location as the area is entirely residential and the policy of the Waste 
Management Department is not to install litter bins in residential areas.  Main 
thoroughfares surrounding the suggested location have an adequate number of bins 
for dog walkers and the public generally to avail of. 
 
It is the responsibility of dog owners to both remove and dispose of their dog waste 
appropriately and it may be disposed of either in the nearest available public litter bin 
or in  their domestic bin.  

  
Contact: Simon Brock, Administrative Officer, Waste Management 
Tel: 222 4237 
Email: simon.brock@dublincity.ie  

 
Q2 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to arrange for the tree stump outside (details supplied) be 
removed, and the tree beside the stump is examined with the possibility of cutting it 
back. 
 
Reply 
The tree stump at this location has been removed. The tree nearby has been 
inspected regarding the request to cut it back, however pruning would not be deemed 
a priority at the present time. 
 
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent, Parks Department 
Tel:    222 3435 
Email:    sean.redmond@dublincity.ie  
 

Q3 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 
To ask the Area Manager to remove the double yellow lines along the railings at St. 
James Walk where it meets Rialto Street. 
 
Reply 
A request for the removal of double yellow lines at the above location has been 
referred to the Traffic Advisory Group for examination and report.  The Councillor will 
be informed of the recommendation in due course. 

 
Contact:  Mary Boyle, Acting Senior Staff Officer, Administration/Traffic Advisory 
Group 

 Tel: 222 2523 
 Email: traffic@dublincity.ie  

 
 

Page 75

mailto:simon.brock@dublincity.ie
mailto:traffic@dublincity.ie


Q4 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager who authorised the obtrusive gas installation on the new 
street beside Aloft Hotel Dublin 8? Does it require planning permission or any form of 
consent from Dublin City Council? There is a growing fear that these can now pop up 
anywhere on our city streets. Can these be made less obtrusive, see attached photo:  

 

 
 

Reply 
The Planning Enforcement Section will open a file on this matter and investigate the 
issue raised and respond directly to the Councillor shortly. 
 
Contact:  John Downey, Administrative Officer, Planning Department.  
Tel: 222 3465 
Email:  john.downey@dublincity.ie 

 
Q5 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager to report on all listed derelict sites in Dublin 8. How many 
are on the derelict sites register and what sites if any are pending to be added? 
 
Reply 
A Derelict Sites Report is listed on the Agenda for this month’s Area Committee 
Meeting under the following headings: - 

1. Sites under investigation / subject to formal action / kept under review.  
2. Sites entered on the Derelict Sites Register 

 
Contact:  Nial Dully, Administrative Officer, Building Control Division, Planning & 
Property Development Department. 
Tel: 222 3941 
Email:  nial.dully@dublincity.ie 
 

Q6 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh  
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q7 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager if a report can be carried out on (details supplied). That a 
report be carried out as to the future of this complex. That full demolition, part 
demolition/part refurbishment be considered. The front 2 blocks in particular (at the 
pitch) are magnets for serious anti-social behaviour and although attempts have 
been made to physically improve the complex there are still huge issues with 
dampness and other maintenance issues. 

Page 76



 
Reply 
Dublin City Council are currently completing a city wide audit of all our flat 
complexes. This is being carried out with a view to prioritising future development of 
our sites. The review includes certain criteria, including current condition, 
development potential, energy rating, Planning zone & Maintenance History. All 
Complexes are being ranked with a view to future development. The (details 
supplied) complex is part of this review which is due to be completed in March 2019. 

 
Contact: Treacy Byrne, Administrative Officer, Housing, Community & Emergency 
Services 

 Tel: 222 6748 
 Email: treacy.byrne@dublincity.ie 
 
Q8 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager why, (details supplied) has a different fob mechanism to 
open their gates than the other blocks across the way. Tenants can only open the 
gates if they go out to the gate and use their fob to open it.  The fob does not work 
from inside their flat. In one case a tenant who needed an ambulance could not let 
them in as she could not go to the gate. 

 
Reply 
Tenants at (details supplied) have fobs to open the gates. It was recently brought to 
our attention by one of the tenants living in (details supplied) that there is a problem 
with opening the gates with the intercom system from inside their homes. The 
problem was reported to our Electrical Services Section whereby they requested a 
contractor to investigate the issue.  The fault has now been rectified and the tenants 
in (details supplied) can now operate the gates. 

 
 Contact: Fiona O Shea, Project Estate Officer, South Central Area 

Tel: 222 7323 
Email: Fiona.oshea@dublincity.ie  

Page 77



 
Q9 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager to ask the Housing Maintenance Section do a condition 
survey of (details supplied). This tenant recently moved into this unit, which was 
refurbished by a contractor, but informs me that the following maintenance issues 
need to be addressed: 
 

o The boiler does not work properly.  
o The walls are wet and tenant reports that the rain is actually coming through 

the walls. 
o The hall door does not lock properly and she feels very vulnerable because of 

this. 
 

Reply 
A contractor has called to this dwelling and reports the following: 

 Arrangements have been made for a heating contractor to inspect the boiler 

and carry out ant repairs deemed necessary. 

 Housing Maintenance Engineer will carry out damp testing on the walls of this 

dwelling. 

 The door has been inspected and is in good working order with the lock also 

in good working order. 

 
Contact:  Frank d’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:  222 3517 
Email: frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie 

 
Q10 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager to report on the length of time it is taking to address the 
serious dampness issues at (details supplied). The tenant has also reported that it is 
almost impossible to heat the flat up. Can the heating system be inspected please? 
 
Reply 
There is no record to date on our system of a complaint of dampness in this dwelling. 
This has now been logged and Housing Maintenance will investigate. 
The heating system has been inspected and a new boiler is required. This is 
scheduled for completion of works within the next week. 
 
Contact:  Frank d’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:  222 3517 
Email: frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie 
 

Q11 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to address the increasing volume of abandoned cars at 
(details supplied 1). Residents have reported that it was always a problem but has 
got worse of late. Rubbish is now being dumped there. Also there are problems with 
erratic parking in and around this area (details supplied 2). Can this also be followed 
up on? 
 
Reply 
The locations (details supplied) were inspected for illegal dumping and abandoned 
vehicles. All illegally dumped materials will be removed and disposed of. Appropriate 
signage will be displayed in the vicinity. All the vehicles parked there had valid tax 
and insurances discs. Parking Enforcement have been notified and DPS on request 
will survey the area for illegal parking.  

Page 78



 
Contact: Anna McDermott, Public Domain Officer, South Central Area 
Tel: 222 5117 
Email: anna.mcdermott@dublincity.ie 
 
Waste Management Services had dumped rubbish removed from this location on the 
12th February 2019. Also our Abandoned Vehicles Officer will investigate the issue of 
abandoned cars at this location. 

 
Contact:  Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services,  
Tel:   2224240. 
Email:  mick.boyle@dublincity.ie. 

 
Dublin Street Parking Services have been requested to monitor this location for illegal 
parking and to take enforcement action if necessary. 

 
Contact:  Helen McGrath, Staff Officer, Parking Policy & Enforcement Section 
Environment & Transportation Dept   
Telephone: 01 222 2216 
Email: helenj.mcgrath@dublincity.ie  
 

Q 12 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager for an update on (details supplied). The roof was insulated 
in September but the job was not finished. When will the job be completed and when 
can she expect windows fixed? 
 
Reply 
Housing Maintenance Energy Liaison Officer confirms that this dwelling is included 
on our Phase 2 list for external wall insulation works, however it is not scheduled for 
completion in 2019.  
A request for an inspection of the windows has been logged and will be carried out in 
the next few weeks. 
 
Contact:  Frank d’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:  222 3517 
Email:  frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie 
 

Q 13 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager for an update on (details supplied). There is damp in one of 
the bedrooms in this house. It was inspected by a contractor and he said it needs 
work as the house is insulated and the damp should not occur. Can DCC inspect and 
fix the issues causing the damp. 

 
Reply 
Housing Maintenance Energy Liaison Officer called to this dwelling 8th February by 
appointment.  He reports: This dwelling was insulated in 2015. The tenant states she 
likes heat and keeps the house quite warm. Our Officer tested for dampness with the 
damp meter however there were no readings of same. There is a little mould in the 
upstairs rooms. He has made arrangements to have a filter less fan installed on the 
landing to assist with this issue. 
 
Contact:  Frank d’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:  222 3517 
Email: frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie 

 

Page 79

mailto:mick.boyle@dublincity.ie
mailto:helenj.mcgrath@dublincity.ie


Q 14 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager to ensure a proper clean-up of (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
Waste Management Services had the road and footpaths at the above mentioned 
location cleaned on the 7th February 2019. 

 
Contact: Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services,  
Tel: 222 4240. 
Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie. 
 

Q 15 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager to urgently fix the paths on (details supplied). There was 
work carried out last year but only part of the road was completed 
 
Reply 
Upon inspection of the footpath on (details supplied) the majority of the pavement 
was reconstructed on one side of the carriageway while the other is still in its original 
condition. These works have not been selected for our 2019 minor works contract.  
The original footpath, although older, is in a reasonable condition and the only 
defects I could log were on the footpath located past the roundabout. These have 
been added to our works list for repair. 

 
Contact: Carl Ryan, Operations & South Central Area Engineer 
Tel: 222 8812 
E-mail: roadmaintennace@dubloncity.ie 
 

Q 16 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager to update me on the housing case for (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
The above named applicant is on the Transfer list with an application date of July  
2016 and holds the following positions on this list;  
 

Area  Bed – size position 

K 3 286 

N 3 162 

 
Contact: Mary Hayes, Senior Executive Officer, Homeless Allocations 
Tel: 222 2062 
Email: mary.hayes@dublincity.ie 
 

Q 17 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager to replace the bins at (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
The Waste Management Division have no current plans to provide for a further 
installation of Solar Compactor Bins at these locations.  

 
 Contact: Simon Brock, Administrative Officer, Waste Management Division. 
 Tel: 222 4237. 
 Email:  simon.brock@dublincity.ie  

 
 

Page 80

mailto:mick.boyle@dublincity.ie
Tel:222
mailto:simon.brock@dublincity.ie


Q 18 Councillor Greg Kelly 
To ask the Area Manager who is responsible for installing Electric Car Charging 
Points throughout Dublin South Central? Have DCC any plans to install any in the 
next 12 months for Dublin South Central? 

 
Reply 
Initially EV chargers were installed throughout the City by ESB E-cars. The ESB as 
statutory undertakers did not have to seek permission for the installation of the 
chargers. Due to funding issues the ESB ceased rolling out EV chargers and now 
only maintain/upgrade the existing EV chargers. 
The Department of Transport established a Low Emission Vehicles (LEV) Taskforce 
Working Group in 2017. The working group is led by the Department’s Climate 
Change Unit and comprises members from the Department and members from the 
Department of Communications Climate Action and the Environment, the Department 
of Housing Planning Community & Local Government, the Department of Public 
Expenditure & Reform, the Department of Finance, the CCMA, Sustainable Energy 
Authority of Ireland (SEAI), Transport Infrastructure Ireland (TII), the National 
Transport Authority (NTA) and the ESB. 
The objective of the working group is to present a range of 2020-2025 vehicle growth 
scenarios, recommend a revised national LEV target for 2020, accompanied by a 
roadmap and to link these growth rates to a range of stimulus options and public 
leadership measures.  The working group surveyed parking operators, both private 
and local authority and sought parking operator’s views regarding the installation of 
charging infrastructure in their facilities and potential incentives to encourage more 
widespread deployment.  
The Council as co-chair of the Smart Docklands Energy Action Group agreed in 2018 
to investigate the feasibility of installing EV chargers and undertook to undertake a 
trial installation on Sir John Rogerson’s Quay. It is expected that this EV charger will 
be commissioned in Q2 2019 and this experience will inform the Council’s policy on 
the possible further roll out of EV chargers. 

 
Contact: Kevin Meade, Senior Executive Officer, Environment & Transportation 
Department 
Tel:  222 2109  
Email:  kevin.meade@dublincity.ie 

 
Q19 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager please give an up to date report on the efforts to secure the 
future of the Bluebell Cemetery, Dublin 12, from further vandalism?  What efforts 
have been taken to date to repair the damage caused? Efforts to try and prevent re-
occurrence of this damage to a space which right thinking persons should never 
interfere with.  
 
Reply 
Following the vandalism at Bluebell Cemetery a fence was erected at a breach in the 
boundary on the west side, where it is likely the perpetrators entered the site. The 
pillar at the main entrance was also repaired and the gate re-hung. A company was 
engaged to repair and replace the damaged headstones. Over 30 headstones were 
damaged altogether in the attack and a company was engaged to carry out repair. 
There are 2 remaining headstones to be repaired and 2 more that will need to be 
replaced entirely. Pruning has been carried out to help decrease the likelihood of 
further anti-social behaviour. A private company installed CCTV next to the laneway 
and this should also help the situation.  
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent, Parks Department 
Tel:    222 3435 Email:    sean.redmond@dublincity.ie  

Page 81

mailto:kevin.meade@dublincity.ie


 
Q20 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager please arrange that the badly broken footpaths / road surface 
outside (details supplied) be repaired, the residents along here have said the water is 
ponding in the badly worn surface. 

 
Reply 
I have inspected the footpath and carriageway at this location, there is slight ponding 
present at the kerb side of the footpath but this is within concrete tolerances. There is 
a pothole at this address and this has been added to our works list for a temporary 
repair. This road is starting to degrade and I will put forward this section of 
carriageway for possible inclusion in our 2020 Resurfacing programme. This is 
dependent on available budget. 

 
 Contact: Carl Ryan, Operations & South Central Area Engineer 
 Tel:  222 8812 
 Email: roadmaintenance@dublincity.ie 
 
Q21 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to please seek from senior management / An Garda 
Siochana a large CCTV camera be positioned in the top section of Californian Hills 
Park, Rossmore Road, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10, similar to the new cameras in Cherry 
Orchard, to deter anti-social behaviour in this beautiful park.  The capacity to police 
the area is greatly reduced due to Garda numbers.  A camera will act as a serious 
deterrent in stopping anti-social behaviour in both Californian Hills Park and 
Glenaulin Park a SDCC park which borders the city administrative boundary. 

 
Reply 
Dublin City Council will discuss with An Garda Siochana the feasibility of installing 
pole mounted CCTV at Rossmore Road to see if it would enhance the security of the 
area by supplementing the existing CCTV. Costs for the installation of a standalone 
pole and CCTV may be prohibitive but an upgrade of the existing CCTV might be an 
option for consideration. All installations are now subject to the GDPR legislation.  
 
Contact: Kay Noonan Cork, Ballyfermot Area Manager, Ballyfermot Area Office 
Tel: 2224667 
Email: kay.noonan_cork@dublincity.ie  

 
Q22 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager please report to me on the following housing issue (details 
supplied)?  

 
Reply 
The above named applicant is on the Housing list with an application date of 
December 2007, and holds the following positions on this list;   
 

Area  Bed size position 

J 3 33 

J 4 12 

  
Dublin City Council acknowledge that there is a significant over-crowding issue in this 
property. And the family are residing in difficult circumstances. As this family require 
four bed-room accommodation which is in short supply across all areas of the city it 

Page 82



may be some time before they are reached for an offer of a social housing tenancy. 
We have noted the applicants interest in housing in the Cherry Orchard area.  
 
Contact: Mary Hayes, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Department 
Tel: 222 2062 
Email: mary.hayes@dublincity.ie 

 
Q23 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to request that the Housing Department look at the 
following housing request (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
The above named applicant is on the transfer list with an application date of June 
2008, and holds the following positions on this list;   

Area  Bedroom size Position 

J 3 80 

J 4 16 

J 5 3 

Area  Bedroom size Position 

E 3 105 

E 4 19 

E 5 6 

Area  Bedroom size Position 

B 3 77 

B 4 17 

B 5 5 

 
Dublin City Council acknowledge that there is a significant over-crowding issue at this 
tenancy and the family are residing in difficult circumstances. As this family require 
four or five bed-room accommodation which is in short supply across all areas of the 
city it may be some time before they are reached for transfer to larger 
accommodation. It is not possible to improve this household’s positions on the 
transfer list as all tenants ahead of this household are also in need of larger 
accommodation.  
 
Contact: Mary Hayes, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Department 
Tel: 222 2062 
Email: mary.hayes@dublincity.ie 

 
Q24 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to request that the Housing Department look at the 
following housing request (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
The applicant (details supplied) is on Band 1 of the Housing list since 16th of June 
2015 with the following positions 
 
 97 for Area B (Kilbarrack/Darndale)  
 47 for Area J (Ballyfermot/Bluebell) 
 115 for Area L (James Street/Newmarket/Coombe) 

 

Page 83



Homeless Allocations will get a member of the Homeless Action Team to link in with 
the applicant (details supplied) this week to discuss all housing options. They will also 
discuss the options around a more suitable placement through Central Placement 
Services and will advise on all available supports around medical issues.  
It is not possible to indicate accurately the prospect of an offer of accommodation for 
any applicant. The number of vacancies arising will be a determining factor in the 
length of time applicants could expect to be on the waiting list. 
I can confirm that the household is also eligible for the "Household Assistance 
Payment" (HAP) scheme which would greatly assist them in accessing the private 
rental market. This means that the household is eligible to be considered for one 
month's advance deposit and one month rent in advance with differential rent 
payable to Dublin City Council. 

 
Access to/further information on HAP is available from the HAP unit on 
placefinders@dublincity.ie or 222 6955 
The applicant can contact the Homeless Allocations Section on 222 2205 at any time 
to discuss their application. 
 
Contact: Mary Hayes, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Department 
Tel: 222 2062 
Email: mary.hayes@dublincity.ie 

 
Q25 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

I contacted the Area Manager in relation to the following case a few weeks ago 
(details supplied). Can they transfer? 

 
Reply 
The Allocations Section will follow up with the local area office in relation to 
addressing the anti-social issues in this estate. The household are currently not on a 
transfer list as they have not been in residence for the required two years. Please 
advise the above named tenants to make contact with the Allocations Section to 
discuss their options regarding transfer options.    

 
Contact: Mary Hayes, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Department 
Tel: 222 2062 
Email: mary.hayes@dublincity.ie 

 
Q26 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that I be given an update on the following (details 
supplied). 

 
Reply 
The above named applicant is on the Housing list with an application date of April 
2009, and holds the following positions on this list;   
 

Area  Bed size position 

J 2 36 

H 2 29 

K 2 43 

 
Should this applicant wish to be considered for a Medical Priority she should submit 
written medical evidence from a Medical Doctor or a Medical Consultant to the 
Allocations Section for review, along with the completed Medical Priority Application 
Form.  

Page 84

mailto:placefinders@dublincity.ie
mailto:mary.hayes@dublincity.ie


In addition, the applicant may also submit explanatory and background material from 
Public Health Nurses, Social Workers, Occupational Therapists and other Health 
Professionals this may accompany the application but will not form the basis of the 
decision which must be based on a report from a Medical Doctor or Consultant.  
Priority status may be awarded for conditions, which cause major problems where 
the management of the course of the illness will be helped by a change in housing. 
The housing support offered may be HAP/RAS/AHB/Leasing/Social Housing stock 
depending on the suitability of the accommodation to meeting the needs  
Applications forms for Medical Priority are available on the Dublin City Council 
website or from any local Area Housing office.  
 
Contact: Mary Hayes, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Department 
Tel: 222 2062 
Email: mary.hayes@dublincity.ie 

 
Q27 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager please indicate if and when the 3 tonne vehicle limit on Le 
Fanu Road, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10, was lifted / removed?  Residents tell me the 
situation has become intolerable over the past few months with the volume of heavy 
traffic. I am asking that this decision be addressed as a matter of urgency. 
 
Reply 
The above matter is under investigation by the Area Traffic Engineer.  The Councillor 
will be informed in due course. 
 
Contact: Mary Boyle, Acting Senior Staff Officer, Administration/Traffic Advisory 
Group 

 Tel: 222 2523 
 Email: traffic@dublincity.ie  
 
Q28 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

To ask the Area Manager to ask Waste Management to set out the criteria and policy 
for providing and locating ordinary waste bins, smart bins and dog fouling bins within 
the South Central Area and if different policies and criteria apply in other areas. 

 
Reply 

 It is the policy of Dublin City Council to maintain the stock of 3,000 plus litter bins and  
to ensure that bins are located at the most effective locations to cater for the needs of 
the city population.  The policy is to ensure that bins are located in close proximity to 
significant litter generators and in areas of high pedestrian footfall.  Significant litter 
generators and areas of high footfall include: 

 Neighbourhood shops 

 Schools / Educational Facilities 

 Shopping centres 

 Leisure areas 

 Community centres / Facilities 

 Major bus stops / Transport hubs 

 Main thoroughfares / Arterial routes  

 Car Parks 
 
It is not the policy of the Waste Management Department to install bins in residential 
areas. In order to ensure that bins are located in the most appropriate locations to 
cater for levels of demand and to ensure that bins are adequately serviced and 
maintained Dublin City Council is using technology to assist in managing this aspect 

Page 85

mailto:traffic@dublincity.ie


of the service through QR code reporting, asset mapping and the use of smart bin 
technology.  In 2017 /2018 as part of the objectives of the Litter Management Plan 
2016 – 2018 over 120 dog fouling specific litter bins were installed in the 5 areas in 
conjunction with the area Public Domain teams.  There are no further plans for the 
installation of such bins as these bins have had limited success in tackling dog 
fouling and have a low capacity. The criteria used for siting these bins at the time 
were: 

 Areas of high footfall dog walking 

 Proximity to Parks  

 Proximity to open green spaces 

In 2018 the roll out of a number of smart bins took place following a successful trial of 
these units.  The installation of these units has been concentrated in confined city 
centre areas on service route basis as this is the optimum way in which to benefit 
from the technology.  As part of the installation 50 units were located throughout the 
5 areas again in areas agreed with local Public Domain teams to assess whether the 
locations identified would benefit from the increased capacity of the units. 4 additional 
units were installed in the South Central Area following receipt of funding for these 
units from the area department. 
 
A further installation of these units in the North Inner City was undertaken by the 
North East Inner City Task Force and a recent installation in Dublin Docklands has 
been undertaken by Smart Dublin / Dublin Docklands office. Both of these 
installations have been carried out with the agreement of the Waste Management 
Department in respect of the locating and servicing of the units. 
There is no variation in the application of the criteria or policy in relation to the 
locating or supply of litter bins between the 5 areas.   

 
Contact: Simon Brock, Administrative Officer, Waste Management Services 
Tel: 222 4237 
Email: simon.brock@dublincity.ie  

 
Q29 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

To ask the Area Manager to ask Parks Department to set out the criteria and policy 
for locating ordinary waste bins, smart bins and dog fouling bins in parks in the South 
Central Area. 

 
Reply 
The placing of bins in parks is decided on an as-needed basis. Standard bins take all 
forms of litter including dog waste. Parks and Landscape Services will begin to trial 
Smart bins in a number of its parks in 2019 in locations where weekend use is 
particularly high. 
  
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent, Parks Department 
Tel:    222 3435 
Email:    sean.redmond@dublincity.ie  

 
Q30 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

To ask the Area Manager what cycling facilities have been provided in the South 
Central Area in 2017/2018 and what maintenance and repairs have been carried out 
to existing cycling facilities in that period.  

 
 

Page 86

mailto:simon.brock@dublincity.ie


Reply 
Road Maintenance Services 2017 and 2018 South Central Area Works Programmes 
included carriageway resurfacing which would have incorporated some cycle lane 
resurfacing as part of these works. Records of every repair that Road Maintenance 
Services carried out do not differentiate between cycle lane and road carriageway. 

 
Contact: Carl Ryan-Operations & South Central Area Engineer 
Tel: 222 8812 
E-mail: roadmaintenance@dublincity.ie 

 
257 Cycle Parking Stands (catering for 514 bicycles) were installed throughout the 
South Central Area during 2017/2018. 
 
A toucan crossing at Conyngham Road/Parkgate Street at the entrance to the 
Phoenix Park was also constructed in 2017. 

 
Contact: Alec Dundon, A/Senior Executive Engineer, Traffic Management & Control   

 Tel: 222 2706 
E-mail: alec.dundon@dublincity.ie   

 

 

Page 87

mailto:roadmaintenance@dublincity.ie



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Meeting held on 20th February 2019
	Minutes
	4 South Central Area Matters

	2 March Questions to the South Central Area Manager
	3 Roads & Traffic Matters
	Traffic Service Requests

	4 South Central Area Matters
	Naming Numbering site at 88-90 Drimnagh Rd
	Map 88 - 90 Drimnagh Rd Namimg Numbering
	Sheets and Views
	site location



	5 Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services
	Sports Report for March 2019

	6 Planning and Economic Development Matters
	MAP Re Longmeadows

	9 February Questions and Answers



